
 
 
 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

 

Friday, December 9, 2016 

    1:00 PM 

 

 

 

1225 Barefoot Boulevard, Building D/E 

 



BAREFOOT BAY 

RECREATION DISTRICT 
 

 

12/3/2016 If an individual decides to appeal any decision made by the Recreation District with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, a record of 

the proceedings will be required and the individual will need to ensure that a verbatim transcript of the proceedings is made, which record includes the 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based (FS 286.0105).  Such person must provide a method for recording the proceedings verbatim.  

 

 
 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Regular Meeting 

Friday, December 9, 2016 1 P.M. 

 Building D&E  

AGENDA 

Please turn off all cell phones 

1. Thought for the Day 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 

3. Roll Call 

4. Presentations and Proclamations 

A. Luann Henderson Retirement 

B. Barefoot Bay Song 

C. FPL Presentation 

5. Approval of Minutes   

6. Treasurer’s Report 

7. Audience comment on Agenda Items 

8. Unfinished Business 

A. Review of Committees 

B. Safety Deposit Box Relocation 

9. New Business  

A. DOR Violations 

i. Case # 16-003542 944 PECAN CIRCLE 

B. Lounge Canopies Re-covering Award of Contract 

C. Lake Water Fountain Donation Request by BFBHOA  

D. Golf Advisory Committee Recommendation: Membership Rates 

E. Finance Advisory Committee Recommendation: New Bank  

F. Recreation Advisory Committee Recommendation: Soccer Field 

G. Replacement Golf Cart Award of Contract 

H. Resident Relations Postage Machine Lease Renewal 

I. Confirmation of CCTV Change Order 

J. Building A Sound System Upgrades 

K. 19th Hole Carpet Replacement 

L. Facilities Planning Advisory Committee Appointments 

M. Finance Advisory Committee Appointments 

N. Security Advisory Committee Appointment 

O. Violations Committee Appointment 

P. Guinther v. Barefoot Bay Recreation District 

10.Manager’s Report 

11.Attorney’s Report  

12.Committee/Liaison Reports 

13.Incidental Trustee Remarks 

14.Audience Participation  

15.Adjournment  



BAREFOOT BAY 

RECREATION DISTRICT 
 

 

12/3/2016 If an individual decides to appeal any decision made by the Recreation District with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, a record of 

the proceedings will be required and the individual will need to ensure that a verbatim transcript of the proceedings is made, which record includes the 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based (FS 286.0105).  Such person must provide a method for recording the proceedings verbatim.  

 

 
 

14. Audience Participation  

15. Adjournment  



 

 

 

 

I pledge allegiance to the Flag 

of the United States of 

America, and to the Republic 

for which it stands, one Nation 

under God, indivisible, with 

liberty and justice for all. 







 
Roll Call 

  
 
Trustees 
 
Chairman - Mr. Klosky  
 
1st Vice Chair - Ms. Wright 
 
2nd Vice Chair - Mr. Lavier 
 
Secretary - Mr. Diana 
 
Treasurer - Mr. Cavaliere 
 
 
Also Present  
 

General Counsel- Cliff Repperger, Jr., Esq. 
 

Community Manager - John W. Coffey  

 
District Clerk - Dawn Myers  
   

  

  

  

 

  



 
Approval of Minutes 

 
  

  

  

  

 



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 1 
 

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
November 10, 2016 

                                 1 P.M. –Building D&E  
 
Called to Order 
The Barefoot Bay Recreation District held a Regular Meeting on November 10, 2016 in Building D&E, 
1225 Barefoot Boulevard, Barefoot Bay, Florida. Mr. Klosky called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M. 
 
Thought for the Day 
Mr. Klosky asked for a moment of silence to honor our service personnel both past and present who have 
helped protect our country. He also asked that we remember our Barefoot Bay residents both past and 
present. 
Mr. Klosky led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 
Presentations 
Mr. Klosky read and presented Barefoot Bay Veterans with a Veterans Day Proclamation in honor of their 
service.  
Mr. Diana made a motion to accept the Veterans Day Proclamation. Second by Brian Lavier. Motion 
carried unanimously.  
 
Roll Call 
Present: Mr. Klosky, Ms. Wright, Mr. Diana, Mr. Cavaliere and Mr. Lavier. Also present: General Counsel 
Cliff Repperger, John W. Coffey, Community Manager and Dawn Myers, District Clerk. 
Minutes 
Ms. Wright made a motion to approve the minutes October 25, 2016. Second by Mr. Cavaliere. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Treasurer’s Report 
Mr. Cavaliere presented the Treasurer’s Report for November 10, 2016.  
Mr. Diana made a motion to accept the Treasurer’s Report.  Second by Mr. Lavier. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

   
Audience comment on Agenda Items 
None brought forward 
 
Unfinished Business 
Resolution of Advisory Committee Suspension 
At the October 25, 2016 The Board made a motion to temporarily suspend Mr. Hurrol Brinker from all 
the committees he is currently sitting on. The suspension came about due to a Department Manager 
complaint that Mr. Brinker was creating a hostile work environment for him and his fellow managers by 



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 2 
 

constantly criticizing their department productivity and operations. Mr. Diana was tasked to investigate 
the allegation by meeting with all the managers concerning their position on Mr. Brinker’s complaint. 
He was also asked to meet with Mr. Brinker to hear his side of the situation and bring the full report 
back to this meeting for a final decision by the Board. Ms. Wright requested that the Board table this 
agenda item until the rest of the Board has an opportunity to review the report or call for a recess to 
review prior to hearing the report and making a decision. General Counsel advised that the decision to 
proceed is ultimately up to the Board. Consensus of the Board to proceed with Mr. Diana’s report. Mr. 
Diana read the report which included anonymous statements from staff. The summarized statements 
acknowledged Mr. Brinker and other committee members had, in fact, overstepped their positions on 
occasion by applying undue pressure to staff by criticizing daily operations.  Mr. Diana stated that the 
modern workplace is not reminiscent of the workforce as Mr. Brinker knew it to be years ago. He was 
confident that due to the current situation, Mr. Brinker was well aware of his misstep and could be 
trusted not to recommend releasing Mr. Brinker’s suspension at this time.  
Due to his speech impediment, Mr. Hurrol Brinker presented a written statement read by Ms. Carol 
Joseph concerning the allegations. In his statement Mr. Brinker called attention to the fact that the 
procedure for filing a complaint was not followed by the Board as stated in the BBRD Employee 
Manual. The first time Mr. Brinker had even heard of the complaint was at a public Board of Trustees 
meeting.  He maintained that he was put on trial at a public forum without an opportunity to defend the 
charge. He voiced his thorough dissatisfaction on the way this situation was handled and stated that he 
wished the Board had followed their own rules. 
Ms. Wright supported Mr. Brinker’s position that the chain of command regarding BBRD harassment 
policy was not followed, but rather arbitrarily brought up at a public meeting leaving Mr. Brinker no 
opportunity to defend himself. Mr. Cavaliere stated that he is not comfortable with Mr. Brinker on any 
committees and reiterated his position on abolishing the committees in general. He stated that he heard 
Mr. Brinker discussing the staff in a derogatory manner and brought attention to recent incidents where 
committee members were abusing their roles with staff. He suggested abolishing the committees 
altogether. Mr. Lavier agreed with Mr. Cavaliere as he is well aware that the committee members have 
been overstepping their bounds and was supportive of dissolving the committees. In response to the 
claim that procedure was not followed regarding this charge, Mr. Lavier maintained that the committee 
members are also not following procedure. 
Mr. Klosky recommended applying a 5 month suspension for Mr. Brinker and yielded to the Board to 
make a decision.  
Ms. Carol Joseph spoke on behalf of Mr. Brinker agreeing that this situation was not handled properly 
and acknowledged that both sides had made mistakes. She asked that the Board consider this topic 
carefully. 
Mr. Ernie Cruz commented on the conversation that prompted him to forward an email to Mr. Coffey 
regarding the last conversation he had with Mr. Brinker. He maintained that he believes he did the right 
thing as his co-workers do not deserve for their jobs to be threatened by committee members. 
Mr. Cavaliere made a motion to permanently suspend Mr. Brinker from all advisory committees. Second 
by Mr. Lavier. Ms. Wright opposed. Motion carried 4-1. 



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 3 
 

New Business  
BOT Rules Revision: Elimination of Trustee Departmental Liaison Function 
The revision to the BOT Rules was brought back to the Board for approval due to an additional language 
revision to the Rules and resolution detected at the last meeting. Mr. Cavaliere read the resolution. 
RESOLUTION OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT AMENDING AND 
SUPERSEDING RESOLUTION 2016-02, BY ADOPTION OF A REVISED SET OF RULES FOR 
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT 
WITH OTHER PROVISIONS; AND, PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Mr. Cavalier made a motion to accept the resolution revising the Rules of Trustees. Second by Mr. 
Diana. Mr. Klosky opposed. Motion carried. 4-1 
 
DOR Violations  
Case # 16-003199 1089 Wren Circle 
Ms. Wright made a motion to forward to the attorney for equal and equitable action. Second by Mr. 
Lavier.  Motion carried unanimously. 
Case # 16-003041 606 Tarpon Drive 
Ms. Wright made a motion forward to the attorney for equal and equitable action. Second by Mr. 
Cavaliere.  Motion carried unanimously 
 
Review of Advisory Committees  
Mr. Klosky suggested changing the meeting dates for the Recreation Committee to four times a year and 
keeping Violations and ARCC committees as is but disbanding all the rest of the committees. Mr. Diana 
agreed and recommended establishing Ad Hoc committees as needed. Ms. Wright stated that this is a 
knee jerk reaction. The committees provide a valuable service to the community and they have a lot of 
experience and education to offer Barefoot Bay.   
Jeanne Osborne suggested that perhaps the Board appointed too many committees to start with and 
shared her concern with the undue criticisms of the Board for no good reason. She asked that the Board 
consider keeping the Recreation, Finance, Facility Planning and DOR committees as they are beneficial 
to the community. 
Tom Guinther voiced his dissatisfaction with the idea of abolishing the committees as they are very 
beneficial to the community. The committees provide a welcome forum for the residents to voice their 
opinion. He stated that he is not in agreement with the way the prior agenda topic was handled as the 
Board should have addressed the situation as it happened per policy. 
Nancy Eisele also voiced her concern regarding to abolishing the committees. The members are 
concerned residents of Barefoot Bay and the Board has the final say. She urged them to take a larger role 
with the committees. 
Kathryn Lesh commented on her dissatisfaction with the idea of abolishing the committees. She stated 
that she is very interested in what is going on in the District and will be paying close attention to the 
Board as she is disappointed in the path they have been taken with recent decisions. She urged them to 
make the right decision. 



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 4 
 

Louise Crouse stated that the committees are great benefit to the community as they do a lot of research 
and was also opposed to dissolving the committees. She also acknowledged the process for addressing 
threatening behavior by committee members. This should have gone to the Community manage for 
resolution rather that discussing in a public forum. 
Mr. Cavalier suggested keeping the Finance committee as they are currently working on something. Mr. 
Lavier stated that the Golf Committee is also working on something at this time and recommends they 
complete their deliberation. Ms. Wright stated that the Recreation Committee is working on a couple of 
items. 
Mr. Diana made a motion to table the topic to the next meeting. Second by Ms. Wright. Mr. Lavier 
opposed. Motion carried.4-1 
 
Lease Renewal for Barefoot Bay Beauty Salon 
Barefoot Bay Beauty Salon’s current is due to expire on December 30, 2016.  The terms of the current 
lease provides for an additional 5-year renewal period.  The lessee has requested consideration of (2) 
additional 2-year periods, in place of the 5-year renewal period.  Staff asked for the Board’s 
consideration to amend the Memorandum of Understanding, Item 1.b. of the lease to reflect the tenant’s 
request.   
Mr. Cavaliere made a motion accept the amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding for the 
Beauty Salon lease. Second by Mr. Diana. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
New Lease for Shaw Medical Group, LLC 
Shaw Medical Group has requested consideration of a two year lease to rent the space previously 
occupied by IRMC. They do business as My Health. They are a Family Practice which specializes in 
Internal Medicine. The square footage rate for the lease is $10 per square foot. In addition to the rent, the 
tenant will pay the CAM, Real Estate Tax, Sales Tax and the current rate. The prospective tenant is 
requesting the first 2.67 months’ rent to be waived.  
Mr. Shaw requested help from the District with expenses on a build out for upgrades to the cabinets and 
the carpet. He stated that this is common practice for the lease holder to help with this. He is willing to 
move in as quickly as possible. Mr. Cavaliere stated that he is not familiar with the landlord having 
responsibility for the inside of the space. He was against helping any upgrades. Mr. Klosky was in 
agreement that we should not pay for any work in the building. Ms. Wright asked for more information 
from Mr. Shaw regarding what is needed. Mr. Diana agreed that assisting the build out is not out of the 
question. He would like to provide a good level of service to the community and was willing to support 
his request to help.  Mr. Lavier was hesitant to move forward with helping with the build out but has no 
issue with the lease. Matt Goetz informed the Board that it would take approximately $4000 to do the 
upgrades Mr. Shaw is requesting.  
Mr. Cavaliere made a motion to provide the lease as is and add February as an additional free month. 
Second by Mr. Lavier. Ms. Wright opposed. Motion carried 4-1 
 
Moore Stephens Lovelace, P.A. Audit Planning Communications 
Staff received Fiscal Year 2016 Audit Planning under the guidelines of GAGAS from our independent 
auditor, Moore Stephens Lovelace, P.A. We are directed to present the Audit Planning to the Board of 
Trustees of Barefoot Bay Recreation District. The Audit Planning outlines the Identification of Financial 



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 5 
 

Statement Elements, Audit Objectives, Auditor Responsibilities, Management Responsibilities, General 
Audit Procedures, Internal Control Audit Procedures, Compliance Audit Procedures, Accounting and 
Reporting Issues, and Audit Schedule.  Staff recommends the Board acknowledge receipt of the Audit 
Planning Communications. 
Mr. Cavaliere made a motion to accept the Audit Planning Communications. Second by Mr. Lavier. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Fiscal Year 2015/16 Year-End Budget Amendments and Resolution  
At the end of each fiscal year, staff requests the Board to reallocate budgeted expenditures between 
departments. Staff recommended the Board approve the Resolution for the FY16 Year-End Budget 
Amendments. Mr. Repperger read the resolution. 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION 
DISTRICT AMENDING RESOLUTION 2014-06; AMENDING THE BUDGET; PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Mr. Cavaliere made a motion to approve the resolution for the FY16 Year-End Budget Amendments. 
Second by Mr. Lavier. Motion carried unanimously.  
FY 2016 4th quarter Capital & Grants Transfer and Resolution 
Approval of Transfer of Funds Expended in 4th quarter of FY16 from SBA Capital Improvement 
Account to BBRD Operating Account and Approval of the Resolution 
Staff recommended the Board approve the transfer of $96,797.76 from SBA Capital Improvement 
Account to BOA Operating Account. Mr. Repperger read the resolution. 
A  RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION 
DISTRICT; AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF NINETY SIX THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED 
NINETY SEVEN DOLLARS AND 76/100 CENTS ($96,797.76) FROM THE DISTRICT’S STATE 
BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ACCOUNT TO THE DISTRICT’S 
OPERATING ACCOUNT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Mr. Cavaliere made a motion to approve the resolution approving the transfer of $96,797.76 from SBA 
Capital Improvement Account to BOA Operating Account. Second by Mr. Lavier. Motion carried 
unanimously.  
FY17 Carryover Projects Budget Amendment 
The total of all carryover projects from FY16 to FY17 is $44,028.50.  Staff recommended the Board 
approve the accompanying Resolution for carryover FY16 Unfinished Projects to FY17 Adopted 
Budget. Mr. Repperger read the resolution. 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION 
DISTRICT AMENDING RESOLUTION 2015-12; AMENDING THE BUDGET; PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Mr. Diana made a motion to approve the resolution. Second by Ms. Wright. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
Appointment to Finance Advisory Committee 
Mr. Cavaliere made a motion to appoint Ms. Wilma Weglein to the unexpired 2-year term and Mr. Ed 
Geier to the unexpired 3-year term on the Finance Committee. Second by Ms. Wright. Mr. Lavier 
opposed. Motion carried 4-1  
 
 



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 6 
 

Adoption of FY17 Employee Pay and Classification Plan 
The Board adopted the FY17 Budget on 28Jun16 which contained 14 expenditures/uses decision points. 
One of the decision points was for the adoption of a formal employee pay and classification plan. 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT ESTABLISHING AN 
EMPLOYEE PAY AND CLASSIFICATION PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT WITH OTHER PROVISIONS; AND, 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
General Counsel read the resolution.  
Mr. Diana made a motion to accept the resolution adopting the Employee Pay and Classification Plan. 
Second by Mr. Cavaliere.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Replacement Dump Truck Award of Contract 
The FY17 Budget contains $55,000 for the replacement of the 1986 Ford Dump Truck which has 
136,459 miles (as of February 2016) and was rated mechanically poor and fair in body condition. 
Staff researched the cost of new and used vehicles with the following results: 

 $67,452.00 for a 2017 F-650 Regular Cab with dump body (new, state contract) 
 $29,900.00 for a 2007 Ford F-650 Extended Cab , 114,000 miles 
 $23,900.00 for a 2000 Ford F-650 Regular Cab, 143,176 miles 

E.J. Wright gave his opinion that a diesel engine has more power can take many more miles than a gas 
engine and is easier to maintain. Matt Goetz stated that he looked at both options but the District does 
not put a lot of miles on the vehicles as they are mostly driving in the community. As a result the diesel 
which does not do well with many starts and stops is not necessary for our needs. 
Mr. Cavaliere Made a motion to approve purchase of a replacement Dump Truck to Duval Ford LLC 
for $67,452.00, waving the RFP requirement and authorizing the use of $12,452 in Capital/R&M 
Projects Contingency 
 
Resignation of Jack Dunham from Security Advisory Committee 
Mr. Diana made a motion to accept the resignation from Mr. Jack Dunham. Second by Mr. Lavier. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Manager’s Report 
Mr. Coffey presented a recent UPS request to store their trailer in the Building A parking lot during the 
holiday season to assist with their deliveries in Barefoot Bay. Mr. Coffey advised against this as it may 
take up valuable room in the Building A parking lot during the busy event season.  
Harold Wortman suggested placing the UPS trailer in the RV storage unit. 
Greg Deslandes suggested charging them to use the RV lot as they can come and go with minor 
obstruction.  Board consensus for Mr. Coffey to move forward with the request and find a suitable 
location if possible.  
Mr. Coffey informed the Board of the initial quote to repair the District damages from the hurricane to 
the pier and the extended build out to the beach walkover. 
Mr. Diana made a motion to proceed with a contract for the repairs to the pier and the beach walkover. 
Second by Mr. Cavaliere. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 7 
 

Mr. Coffey will be accepting ideas for inclusion in the FY18-22 5yrFM&CIP starting on November 14, 
2016 through December 16, 2016.  Please contact Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager or Mr. Coffey 
with your idea and any applicable information you have.  Every idea submitted will be listed, although 
revenue limitations may not permit every project to be funded. The Proposed FY18-22 5yrFM&CIP will 
be distributed to Trustees, Finance Advisory Committee and Facilities Planning Committee members by 
close of business Friday January 6, 2017. Some of the Property Services crew will demonstrate new 
Stormwater Bobcat and boom arm mower equipment on November 18th. Mr. Coffey stated that staff has 
researched options for the new safety deposit box. We can wait until next month to make a decision. 
He recommended inviting General Counsel to the next DOR and Charter Workshop. Board consensus to 
allow the attorney to attend.  He invited residents to attend the Veteran’s Ceremony tomorrow and 
reminded the residents that the Pro Shop will have great Black Friday sales after Thanksgiving.  
 
Attorneys Report 
General Counsel gave a status update on the Guinther vs. Barefoot Bay case heard on October 31, 2016. 
At the hearing, Judge Maxwell requested that the parties submit a Memorandum of Supplemental 
Authority by November 9, 2016.  Judge Maxwell indicated that he would review the Memorandum 
submitted in advance of issuing any ruling in the case.  Should you have any questions or concerns, 
regarding the Memorandum of Supplemental Authority and Argument, please feel free to contact me.  
Otherwise, he will advise once a ruling is rendered by the Court. 
 
Trustee Liaison Report   
Mr. Klosky reported on the ARCC meeting. The ARCC met on November 1, 2016 and 42 applications 
were presented and approved.  The next ARCC meeting is on November 15, 2016 in the lounge at 9AM.  
The Violations Committee met on October 28, 2016 and 20 cases were on the agenda.  Six properties 
came into compliance and 14 properties were found in violation.  The Violations Committee met this 
morning Nov 10th with 12 cases on the agenda.  Nine properties were found in violation.  The next 
meeting of Violations Committee is December 9th at 10AM in D/E. 
Mr. Lavier shared the Property Services report. 

 Trenched and installed more piping for the security cameras at the playground  
 Drilled and set 15 new poles also hung the screens at the golf course  
 Cleaned up debris at the beach  
 Set up for veterans day ceremony  
 Mulched The beds in front of building A 
 Replaced the seats on the bar stools at the 19th Hole. The lounge will be replaced next week 
 Ordered and installed new shed for the holiday materials storage  
 Ordered and installed 5 new tables with chairs and umbrellas for Pool 1  
 Ordered and set up 2 new poker tables in Building C.  Two more coming soon. 

 
 
Mr. Lavier read the golf report. The over seeding is complete. The Golf Fore Tots Tournament is this 
Saturday and Sadie Hawkins November 16th. December 2nd is second annual Night Golf. The golf 



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 8 
 

netting is now replaced and reminded residents that on November 24th the golf course closes at 2PM for 
Thanksgiving. 
Mr. Cavaliere reported the Finance Committee will meet with Oculina Bank and Wells Fargo at the next 
meeting on November 3, 2016 1:30PM in Building D. 
Mr. Diana thanked the Veterans for their service and wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. 
Ms. Wright November 17th in Building E at 2Pm is hearing ideas on capital projects. November 15th at 
1PM in Building D/E is the next DOR and Charter committee. She thanked the Veterans for serving, and 
also thanked staff and residents. 
Wilma Weglein reported that Trunk or Treat was a success and thanked Lee Wright and Ann Manzo for 
judging the costume contest. There were four awards this year.  SS Chamberlain from PAFB will be on 
hand at the next HOA meeting on November 11, 2016 7PM. She invited everyone to attend. 
Thanksgiving dinner tickets are on sale for $12. 
 
Incidental Trustee Remarks  
Mr. Klosky announced the Christmas Parade will be on December 4, 2016 starting at Building D/E. 
Anyone interested in helping or joining please contact Mr. Klosky or leave a message for Mr. Klosky at 
the Administrative office in Building F. He read a letter from Kathy Fortier thanking the Board for 
allowing the Craft Club to have their recent Craft Fair. The Craft Club donates proceeds to local 
Charities and also for Thanksgiving Dinner for shut ins. 
 
Audience Participation  
Mr. Harold Wortman congratulated the three incumbents that were elected and hoped we could go 
forward with great ideas for the Bay. He voiced his support of the Board and for the HOA.  
Adjournment 
The next meeting will be on December 9, 2016 at 1PM in Building D/E. 
Mr. Cavaliere made a motion to adjourn. Second by Mr. Lavier.  Motion carried unanimously. 
Meeting adjourned 3:45PM. 
 
 
__________________________________              ____________________________ 
Steve Diana, Secretary      Dawn Myers, District Clerk 



 
Treasurer’s Report 

 
  

  

  

  

 



Cash Balances in General Fund as of 12/1/2016

Bank of America:
Operating Account 1,582,981.30$                  

Money Market Account 105,615.98$                     

Total Cash Balances @BOA in General Fund: 1,688,597.28$                  

SBA:   as of 12/1/2016

Capital Improvement Account 32,280.97$                        

Reserve Account 552,000.46$                     

Total Cash Balances @SBA in General Fund: 584,281.43$                     

Total Cash Balances in General Fund: 2,272,878.71$          

Cash Balance in Debt Fund as of 12/1/2016

SBA:
Debt Account 480,993.33$                     

Total Cash Balance in Debt Fund: 480,993.33$             

* Participant Return for SBA in November 2016 was 0.85%

Total Cash Balances in All Funds: 2,753,872.04$     

Total Daily Deposits and Assessemnts Rec'd (from County Only) from Nov 1 to Nov 30, 2016:
Daily deposits: 182,991.18$                     

Assessments received (from County only): 973,221.36$                     

1,156,212.54$                  

Expenditures over $5,000 from November 1 to November 30, 2016:

Check Amount
63,177.83$                        

63,822.61$                        

10,800.00$                        

6,583.00$                          

5,578.00$                          

6,154.21$                          

5,844.08$                          

14,514.82$                        

37,954.84$                        

19,405.56$                        

35,671.50$                        

11,650.57$                        

Total of Expenditures over $5,000 281,157.02$             

*11/3/16 & 11/17/16 Employer Tax Liabilities were only $4,974.67 & $4,951.15 respectively, and therefore, was not listed above

Brevard county Tax Collector 7995 Fleming Grant Rd
Preferred Government Insurance Trust Worker Comp. insurance

Complete Restaurant Equipment Sandwich unit, bottle and draft beer cooler

Employees Salaries and Wages 11/3/16Employees

Barefoot Bay Recreation District
Treasurer's Report

December 9, 2016

Vendor Description

Public Risk Insurance Liabilities Insurance
Special District Services Management Fee Nov 2016

Employees Employees Salaries and Wages 11/17/16

ABM Landscape Golf, Softball & Lawn Bowling Maint.
UnitedHealthcare Insurance Employees Health Insurance

Legal Fees Oct 2016Gray Robinson

Online Solutions LLC Citizenserve

Empire Carpets 19th Hole Floor



Barefoot Bay Recreation District

Monthly Summary - BOT Monthly Summary Treasurer Report

From 10/1/2016 Through 11/30/2016

10/1/2016 - 

10/31/2016

11/1/2016 - 

11/30/2016 Total

Revenues

   Daily Revenue/Deposits 380,966.21 182,991.18 563,957.39 

   Assessments 200.00 973,421.36 973,621.36 

Total Revenues 381,166.21 1,156,412.54 1,537,578.75 

General Fund Expenditures

   Payroll

      Salaries & Wages 73,534.43 125,874.95 199,409.38 

      Other Pay & Benefit 2,943.48 2,224.85 5,168.33 

      Payroll Taxes 5,913.20 9,925.82 15,839.02 

      Payroll Fees 990.66 1,030.28 2,020.94 

Total Payroll 83,381.77 139,055.90 222,437.67 

   Professional Expenses

      SDS 13,916.00 11,650.57 25,566.57 

      Gray Robinson 14,514.82 0.00 14,514.82 

      Other Prof. Fees 11,261.70 17,662.70 28,924.40 

Total Professional Expenses 39,692.52 29,313.27 69,005.79 

   Insurance

      Employees Health, Dental & Life 14,822.13 19,298.11 34,120.24 

      Liabilities Ins. 18,715.50 11,890.50 30,606.00 

      Worker Comp. Ins. 17,732.25 5,844.08 23,576.33 

Total Insurance 51,269.88 37,032.69 88,302.57 

   Utilities

      Telephone, Internet & Cable 6,096.96 2,635.97 8,732.93 

      Electricity - FPL 6,869.79 0.00 6,869.79 

      Propane 919.45 79.88 999.33 

      Water & Sewer 3,248.64 0.00 3,248.64 

      Garbage & Recycling 1,846.75 3,377.06 5,223.81 

      Portable Toilets 709.06 298.65 1,007.71 

Total Utilities 19,690.65 6,391.56 26,082.21 

   Operations

      Music and Entertainment 5,330.00 6,365.00 11,695.00 

      Cost of Sales 33,307.14 2,998.30 36,305.44 

Total Operations 38,637.14 9,363.30 48,000.44 

   Repairs and Maintenance

      Golf Course - ABM 36,252.13 36,252.13 72,504.26 

      Canal/Lake 479.00 0.00 479.00 

      Other R&Ms 24,772.01 9,854.22 34,626.23 

Total Repairs and Maintenance 61,503.14 46,106.35 107,609.49 

   Stormwater Loan Expenditures

      Loan Principal 2,624.44 2,619.96 5,244.40 

      Loan Interest 274.20 278.68 552.88 

Total Stormwater Loan Expenditures 2,898.64 2,898.64 5,797.28 

   Property Taxes 0.00 15,711.48 15,711.48 

   Bank Fees 1,085.88 0.00 1,085.88 

   Capital Expenses 23,287.73 21,988.16 45,275.89 

   Other Misc. Expenditures 36,404.91 61,607.11 98,012.02 

Total General Fund Expenditures 357,852.26 369,468.46 727,320.72 

Date:  12/2/2016, 11:54 AM Page:  1



 
Audience Participation     

Agenda items only 
 

  

  

  

 



 
Unfinished Business 

 
  

  

  

  

 



Meeting Date  
Dec. 09, 2016 
   
   

Agenda 
Section 8  
Item No    A

 
Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Review of Advisory Committees 
 
Dept/Office: Administration: District Clerk 
 
Requested Action: Direction to Staff 
 
Summary Explanation and Background: 
 
On 10Nov16, the BOT discussed this topic under new business and voted to continue the agenda 
item until the next meeting.  Below is the text from the November agenda memo. 
 

The BOT Rules, Article V, Section 8 governs the creation, review and disbandment of 
advisory or fact finding committees.  Chairman Klosky requested this item be placed on 
the agenda.  
 
Staff requests direction regarding this matter. 
 

Exhibits Attached:  Excerpt from BOT Rules 
Contact: Dawn Myers, District Clerk; Joe Klosky, Trustee 
Fiscal Impact: N/A 
Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: No 
Community Manager’s Approval:  
 
 
 
 
 





Meeting Date  
Dec. 09, 2016 
   
   

Agenda 
Section 8  
Item No    B

 
Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Safety Deposit Box Relocation 
 
Dept/Office: Administration: District Clerk 
 
Requested Action: Direction to Staff 
 
Summary Explanation and Background: 
 
On 10Nov16, the BOT was updated on this issue under the Community Manager’s Report section 
and the BOT agreed to continue this item until the next meeting.  Below is the text from the 
November revised Community Manager’s Report. 
 

Safety Deposit Box Relocation – Staff researched the options available and include the 
following: 
a) 2 hours fire resistant safe $400.  
b) Bank of America that is located at 710 S Fleming St, Sebastian, FL 32958. Rental fee 
for 10” x 10” is $135 per year. 
c) Oculina Bank that is located at 13600 US-1, Sebastian, FL 32958. Rental fee for 10” 
x 10” is $150 per year. 
d) Seacoast Bank that is located at 1110 Roseland Rd, Sebastian, FL 32958. Rental fee 
for 5” x 10” is $95 per year (10” x 10” is not available) 
e) SunTrust Bank that is located at 13800 US-1, Sebastian, FL 32958. Rental fee for 
10” x 10” is $125 per year. 
f) TD Bank currently has no available box. 
 

Since Agenda item 9E deals with changing banks, the BOT may want to consider this item 
out of order (i.e. after agenda item 9E). 
 
Staff requests direction regarding this matter. 

 
Exhibits Attached:  N/A 
Contact: Kimi Cheng, Finance Manager; or John W. Coffey, Community Manager 
Fiscal Impact: Not to exceed $150 per year, unless safe is procured in place of continuing to rent 
a safety deposit box 
Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: No 
Community Manager’s Approval:  
 
 
 
 
 



	
New	Business	

 
  

  

  

  

 



Meeting Date
December 09, 2016

Agenda
Section
Item No.

Agenda Report
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees

#0884
Subject:        Case # 16-003542      944 PECAN CIRCLE 
Dept/Office:  Resident Relations/DOR Enforcement

Requested Action:  To consider the Violations Committee’s finding and recommendation to bring an action for legal, equitable or
other appropriate action with failure to comply.
If the Board of Trustees brings any such action to enforce the DOR, the charge for such action shall be charged to the
Respondents account and shall constitute as a lien. 

Summary Explanation and Background:  The Violations Committee met on 11/10/2016 and found ARTICLE III, SECT. 2 (C)
Condition of Prop. (C) Unauthorized items Occupied  The respondent has been given until November 17, 2016 to bring the
property into compliance.

Staff has signed Affidavit of Notices, First Class and Certified mailing of Order of Finding and Recommended Order and Notice of
Hearing and Affidavit of Non-Compliance.

There are delinquent taxes on the property.  The property is up for tax sale.  Pursuant to the Violations Committee Order, the
property was inspected and found to be still in violation.

Exhibits Attached: *Findings of Fact of Recommended Order Issued by the Violations Committee * Notice of Board Hearing *
Photographs                                                                   

Contact: Susan Cuddie, Stephane Fecteau, Thelma Gruseck, Thomas O'Donnell, Rich Armington

Fiscal Impact:

Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney ___ YES     ___ NO    ___ N/A        Community Manager approval:______

Unauthorized Items - 7 Days - Comply by Nov. 17, 2016
Sep 27, 2016

Sue Cuddie
Typewritten Text
9

Sue Cuddie
Typewritten Text

Sue Cuddie
Typewritten Text

Sue Cuddie
Typewritten Text
A

Sue Cuddie
Typewritten Text



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

12/2/2016 If an individual decides to appeal any decision made by the Recreation District with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, a record of 
the proceedings will be required and the individual will need to ensure that a verbatim transcript of the proceedings is made, which record includes the 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based (FS 286.0105).  Such person must provide a method for recording the proceedings verbatim.  
 
 
 

15. Adjournment  



)l:FOOT BAY VIOLATIONS COMMI'1I 
BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 
Petitioner 

Vs 
Case no. 16-003542 

#0884/16-003542 
LOSIEWICZ, JANINE R, 
944 PECAN CIR 
BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976 

Respondent(s), 

VIOLATIONS COMMflTEE FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDED ORDER 
AND 

NOTICE OF DISTRICT HEARING 

TillS CAUSE having come on for the pnhlic hearing before the Violations Committee on 11110/2016 after dne notice to !he Respondent 
and the Violation Committee having heard testimony under oath and receiving evidence. thereupon issues this Finding of Fact and 
Recommended Order as follows: 

A. The Respondent(s) LOSIEWICZ, JANINE R, et. a!. is/are the owner(s) of that certain parcel of real property located 
at 944 PECAN CIRCLE, Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 (the "Property") 

B Notice of Violation was provided to the Respondent(s) by certified U.S. Mail, Return Receipt Requested/Hand 
. Delivery/Posting, and the Respondent( s) were/were not present for the hearing. 

C. Based upon the testimony heard and the evidence presented, the Violation Committee concluded that there is a violation 
of Article ill, Section 2(e) of the Deed of Restrictions of Barefoot Bay Recreation District in that the Respondents have 
debris on the Property. Specifically. there are unapproved items on the property. 

ORDER 

Based upon the foregoing finding offact and recommended order, it is 

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED THAT: 

1. Respondent(s) shall by November 17, 2016 come into compliance with the violation cited herein by unapproved items in an 
atOlll1d carport (recliners and boat...( etc). 

2. 

Should the Respondent(s) fail to comply with this Recommended Order by November 17,2016 the Respondent(s) is 
advised that Barefoot Bay Recreation District shall cause the home and lotto come into compliance with the requirements 
of the above articles and shall bill the expense of such action to the respondent. 

3. The Respondent is further advised that he/she shall contact the DOR staff and schedule an inspection to confirm the 
compliance with this Order bas bcen achieved. Upon compliance, an Order of Compliance shall be issued and the 
Respondent shall be deemed in c,ompliance with the violation(s) cited herein. 

4. The Respondent(s) are further advised that should a repeat violation oecm, the Respondent(s) will not be given notice to 
cure and will be brought before the Violations Committee. 

DONE AN]) ORDERED this 11/10/2016 at Barefoot Bay Recreation Disu'ictBrevard County, Florida. 

M. Joy Uddy, Chair Al Gnmow, Vice Chair 



BAr~FOOT BAY RECREATION DIS'F~CT 
I BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA' : 

NOTICE OF HEARING 
OF 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDED ORDER ISSUED BY THE VIOLATIONS COMMITTEE 

Pursuant to Resolution 2008-1 of the Board ofTrustees ofThe Barefoot Bay Recreation Dis!}'ict adopted !he 22nd day ofJanuary, 2008; Section 
7: Enforcement Procedme. 

Notice is hereby given that a Hearing will be conducted before the Barefoot Bay Board of Trustees at 1:00 P.M on December 09, 
2016 at 1225 Barefoot Boulevard, Building D&E, Barefoot Bay, Florida. 

The purpose of this Hearing will be to consider the Reconunended Order of the Violations Committee to the Board of Trustees for your Case. 

The Board shaJI not conduct a full de novo quasi-judicial hearing on the violation, but shall consider the Finding of Fact and 
Recommended Order issued by the Violations Committee. The owner may not present new or additional evidence, but shall be given an 
opportunity to be heard. If the Board of Trustees concurs with the Violation Committee that a violation has been established, the Board of 
Trustees shall have the authority to bring an action for injunctive or other appropriate legal or equitable relief in a court of competent 
jurisdiction in Brevard Cmmty, Florida to remedy the violation If theBoard of Trustees brings any such legal action to enforce the Deed of 
Restrictions and is deemed to be the prevailing party in such action, the Board of Trustees shan be entitled to an award of attorneys fees and 
court costs incident to bringing such action 

IF ANY INDIVIDUAL WISHES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES WITH RESPECT TO ANY 
MATTER CONSIDERED AT TIllS MEETING, A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDING WILL BE REQUIRED, WHICH 
RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED SUCH PERSON MUST 
PROVIDE A COURT REPORTER, COURT STENOGRAPHER OR OTHER METHOD ACCEPTABLE TO A COURT OF LAW TO 
PROVIDE FOR SUCH VERBATIM RECORD; THE DISTRICT DOES NOT PROVIDE SUCH RECORD (FS 286.01 OS). 

THIS IS A PUBLIC MEETING. ALL INTERESTED PARTIES MAY ATTEND. THE FACILITY WHEREIN THIS PUBLIC 
MEETING WILL BE HELD IS ACCESSmLE TO THE PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED. IN ACCORDANCE WITH AMERICAN 
DISABILITIES ACT. PERSONS NEEDING ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD 
CONTACT THE DEED OF RESTRICTIONS ENFORCEMENT OFFICE AT 772-664-4722. 

November 09, 2016 
Deed of Restrictions STAFF 

carport 
Thomas O'Donnell 
Oct 22, 2016 



Photo: 944 Pecan

Date Taken:11/29/2016 Taken by:Stephane Fecteau
Address:944 PECAN CIRCLE Case Number:16-003542



Jarefoot Bay Recreation Distrit 
Violations Committee 

"Reconnnended Curative Action Plan" 
Resolution 2013-05 

Case no: 16-003542 Address: 944 PECAN CIRCLE Acct# 0884 

I A. Occupatio~ Status of Property: Occupied 
- -- --- -" 

B. Reconunended proposed secured relocation/storage area Q!! property: 

C. Recommended proposed secured relocation/storage area off property: X 

D. Recommended abatement agent: District Management 

Project 
Date Estimate 

Milestone 

Project I 
Start Date 11/10/2016 

Project 
11/10/2016 

End Date 

~roperty Services ICase # 16-003542 Customer # 0884 
Service Rendered: Dump Truckand Driver _ jTJrIit Price: $75.00 1H0urs: .5 Line Total: $37.50 
Service Rendered: ~tPrice: lHours: Line Total: $0.00 
Service Rendered: IiitPrice: Hours: jLine Total: $0.00 r;" "'"",,,d, /Unit Price: 

--
1H0urs: !Line Total: $0.00 

IUnit Price: 1H0urs: ILine Total: $0.00 

I lDisposal ofDebris: 1$50.00 

.1 -Disposal of Tires: I 
I I I Total $87.50 - . . .. This IS a quotatIOn on the goods or services named, subject to the condItIOiIS. Such condlltons may mclude but not limited 
to whether the property is occupied. 

Approved by 
M.loy Liddy, Violations Connnittee Chair 

I certify that the a!lOve mentioned property was abated by property services on _______ .. (Initials) __ _ 



Meeting Date  
Dec. 09, 2016 
   
   

Agenda 
Section 9  
Item No    B

 
Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Lounge Canopies Replacement Award of Contract 
 
Dept/Office: R&M/Capital 
 
Requested Action: Award of Contract 
 
Summary Explanation and Background: 
 
In preparing for Hurricane Matthew, staff removed the canopy covers from the Lounge.  Due 
to the condition of the material, the reinstallation of the existing canopies was not possible.  
Staff solicited the following quote and anticipates obtaining a second quote next week prior 
to the BOT meeting (which will be forwarded to the Trustees and posted on www.bbrd.org).   
 
 $7,515 ABC Awning & Canvas ($3,240 Pool side and $4,275 lake side) 
 
Funding for the canopy replacement is recommended to be used from R&M/Capital 
Contingency with anticipated majority reimbursement from either BBRD’s insurance 
company and/or FEMA. 
 
Staff recommends the BOT award contract to the lowest responsible vendor. 
 
Exhibits Attached: Quotes from ABC Awning & Canvas Comp., Inc. 
Contact: Kathy Mendes, Food & Beverage Manager; John W. Coffey, Community Manager  
Fiscal Impact: Not to exceed $7,515 
Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: No 
Community Manager’s Approval:  
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.bbrd.org/


 
Lounge awning-pool side                  

Cover Sheet 
 

To: Barefoot Bay From:   Rue McNay 

ATT:  
 

Date:    11/14/2016 

Fax: 
 

Email:  kathymendes@bbrd.org 

Subject: quote  
 

Total Pages, including cover sheet: 1 

 
Recover Poolside Canopy: 

$3240.00 
 
 
 
 
 

There is a 3% service charge for Credit Card payments. 
A 50% deposit (non refundable) is required. 

 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                         
                                                                                                              Thank you 
                                                                                                              Rue McNay 
 

mailto:kathymendes@bbrd.org


 
BIG AWNING-LAKESIDE OF LOUNGE                  

Cover Sheet 
 

To: Barefoot Bay From:   Rue McNay 

ATT:  
 

Date:    11/14/2016 

Fax: 
 

Email:  kathymendes@bbrd.org 

Subject: quote  
 

Total Pages, including cover sheet: 1 

 
Recover hip canopy.  Fabric to be the same as existing awning: 

$4275.00 
 
 
 
 
 

There is a 3% service charge for Credit Card payments. 
A 50% deposit (non refundable) is required. 

 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                         
                                                                                                              Thank you 
                                                                                                              Rue McNay 
 

mailto:kathymendes@bbrd.org


Meeting Date  
Dec. 09, 2016 
   
   

Agenda 
Section 9  
Item No    C

 
Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  BFBHOA Fountain Donation Request 
 
Dept/Office: R&M/Capital 
 
Requested Action: Acceptance of Donation 
 
Summary Explanation and Background: 
 
Earlier this Autumn, Mr. Kahl requested a meeting with staff to present the BFBHOA’s 
donation proposal for a lighted water fountain for the lake behind Building A.  Mr. Kahl 
presented information about the fountain and stated his organization would install the water 
fountain and the annual maintenance cost would be approximately $600 for BBRD. 
 
Per Policy Manual (p. 3-22) requirements for gifts and memorials, “staff determined all the 
short and long-term costs” of the proposal and are presented below. 
 $19,235   10hp TriTier Model with LED lights includes control panel- Total running 

amps -  34 amps – at least 60 amp breaker required 230v 3phase (208v 3phase 
will have very similar pricing). 

 $5,000     Electrical work (approximate.  Formal quote should be received before BOT 
meeting) 

 $24,235   Total Installation costs 
 

 $600        Annual cost for quarterly Maintenance/ Cleaning.  
 
The BFBHOA, per Mr. Kahl, is requesting the BOT waive Guideline #2 for Gift or 
Memorials (page 3-22) which requires donors to provide the cost of the donation to BBRD 
and staff then procures/install said donation.  Mr. Kahl stated the BFBHOA would prefer to 
pay directly for the installation of the fountain. 
 
For transparency purposes, a lake fountain capital project was added to the FY17-21 
5yrFM&CIP last fiscal year which currently shows the project funded for $22,000 in FY18. 
 
Staff recommends BOT accept the BFBHOA donation proposal while waiving the Policy 
Manual requirement for a cash donation and/or provide direction to staff regarding this 
matter. 
 
Exhibits Attached: Information provided by Mr. Kahl, Excerpt of Policy Manual 
Contact: Bob Kahl, BFBHOA Treasurer; Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager; John W. 
Coffey, Community Manager;  
Fiscal Impact: $600 per year 
Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: No 
Community Manager’s Approval:  
 
 
 
 





































   Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                            Part  3 ‐
    Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

22

3.5	 Guidelines	for	Gift	and	or	Memorials	for	the	Barefoot	Bay	Recreation	District131 

 
  All gifts and /or memorials plans must be submitted for review by the Community Manager for 
compliance with the guidelines below. Those meeting the criteria below may be recommended for 
acceptance to the Board of Trustees at a regularly scheduled meeting. Acceptance of any memorial or gift 
meeting the criteria shall be at the discretion of the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees reserves the 
right to decline the acceptance of gifts or memorials due to inappropriateness, restrictions placed upon the 
gift or memorial and any potential financial or legal liability and for any other reason. 
 
1. No gifts or memorials may be considered until the person has been deceased for more than 90 days.  
 
2. Residents desiring to donate gifts and/or memorials shall work with staff to determine the costs of the 

memorial or item.  The cost of the item will be presented to the donor.  BBRD will purchase the item 
after the resident has paid for the item(s) and assume legal liability for the item. 
 

3. No restrictions can be placed on the use or ownership of the gift or memorial. The BBRD is the sole 
owner of all gifts and will determine the use of the gift or memorial. 

 
4. The gift or memorial must be deemed appropriate by the Community Manager and the Board of 

Trustees. 
 
5. The Community Manager must determine all short and long-term costs of all gifts and memorials. 

These costs shall include the maintenance, repair, upkeep, insurance and/or any other hazards or 
liability. The placement of any memorial or gift shall not interfere with the maintenance of District 
facilities. 

 
6. The acceptance, placement, use and removal of gifts and memorials are at the sole discretion of the 

District. 
 
7. Plaques for all memorials shall not be considered permanent, and will be removed at the sole 

discretion of the District when they deteriorate. 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Date  
Dec. 09, 2016 
   
   

Agenda 
Section 9  
Item No    D

 
Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Golf Advisory Committee Recommendation: Membership Rates 
 
Dept/Office: Golf-Pro Shop 
 
Requested Action: Direction to Staff 
 
Summary Explanation and Background: 
 
At the 25Oct16 BOT meeting, a resident voiced her concern over the difference in the cost 
between a single and family annual membership to the BBRD Golf Course.  The BOT referred 
the issue to the Golf Advisory Committee (GAC) for their review and for the issue to be placed 
on a future BOT agenda. 
 
On 02Dec16, the GAC thoroughly discussed the issue and declined to make a recommendation to 
the BOT.   
 
Staff requests direction from the BOT regarding this matter. 
 
Exhibits Attached: 25Oct16 BOT Minutes and Golf Membership Rate Comparison 
Contact: John Armstrong, GAC Chairman; Ernie Cruz, Golf Operations Manager; John W. 
Coffey, Community Manager;  
Fiscal Impact: TBD 
Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: No 
Community Manager’s Approval:  
 
 
 
 



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 1 
 

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
October 25, 2016 

                                7 P.M. –Building D&E  
 
Called to Order 
The Barefoot Bay Recreation District held a Regular Meeting on October 25, 2016 in Building D&E, 
1225 Barefoot Boulevard, Barefoot Bay, Florida. Mr. Klosky called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 
 
Thought for the Day 
Mr. Klosky asked for a moment of silence to honor our service personnel both past and present who 
have helped protect our country. He also asked that we remember our Barefoot Bay residents both past 
and present. 
Mr. Cavaliere led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 
Roll Call 
Present: Mr. Klosky, Ms. Wright, Mr. Diana and Mr. Cavaliere. Mr. Lavier was excused. Also present: 
General Counsel Cliff Repperger, John W. Coffey, Community Manager and Dawn Myers, District 
Clerk. 
 
Minutes 
Mr. Cavaliere made a motion to approve the minutes October 14, 2016. Second by Mr. Diana. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Treasurer’s Report 
Mr. Cavaliere presented the Treasurer’s Report for October 25, 2016.  
Mr. Diana made a motion to accept the Treasurer’s Report.  Second by Ms. Wright. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

   
Audience comment on Agenda Items 
None brought forward 
 
Unfinished Business 
BBRD Census/Survey 
At the Trustee Workshop held on September 20, 2016 a general discussion was held about surveys and a 
possible census of BBRD residents. Ms. Mary Weller explained the census survey project hand out and 
sample census. She discussed the steps she has taken along with two other concerned residents, Randy 
Loveland and Roger Compton, to get a census survey plan developed. She stated she hoped to have the 
completed survey which consists of key demographic information by badge renewal time next year.  She 
requested that the Board allow them to continue working on the survey project. Roger Compton and 
Randy Loveland agreed that they anticipate what will come out of this project is something the 



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 2 
 

homeowners have voiced a desire for in recent years. The information will help the District have a better 
understanding of who our residents are and address our residents’ concerns.  
Mr. Cavaliere made a motion that Mary Weller, Randy Loveland and Roger Compton continue their 
work on the survey project. Second by Mr. Diana. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Fleet Golf Cart RFP Award of Contract 
Currently, BBRD leases thirty-three fleet golf carts from E-Z GO for use by our golf course members 
and customers. The lease expires on December 31, 2016. Per BBRD Policy Manual requirements, staff 
issued a Request For Proposals (RFP) for a new lease on September 12, 2016 and received three 
proposals by the deadline. The RFP evaluation committee opened the three bids and ranked them in the 
following order: 
• Yamaha (275.00) 
• E-Z GO (207.00) 
• Club Car (185.75) 
BBRD requested each proposer submit two leasing options for 3 and 4 years. The top ranked 
Yamaha proposal contains the following leasing terms: 
$28,116 per year for 3-years 
$24,153 per year for 4-years 
Mr. Cavalier made a motion to accept the four year contract with Yamaha for $24,153 annually. Second 
by Mr. Diana. Motion carried unanimously.  
Mr. Diana stated he has the utmost confidence in staff and hopes we have turned a corner in our 
assurance of staff judgement. He is very pleased with staff’s work and decision making. 
 
FY16 Various Capital Projects Budget Amendment and Resolution 
In FY16, the Board approved various projects that require Budget Amendments to the FY16 Adopted 
Budget. The projects which require funding are: CCTV Replacement and Expansion project, 
Replacement 19th Hole Oven project, Bldg. D Ceiling Mounted Projector and Screen project and 
Replacement of the 19th Hole Floor Project. BBRD is permitted under state law (189.016(6) (c) FL. 
Statutes) to adjust the prior fiscal year’s budget up to 60 calendar days after the end of the year. 
Staff recommended approval of the resolution authorizing the budget amendments/transfers to the FY16 
Adopted Budget. General Counsel Repperger read the resolution: 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION 
DISTRICT AMENDING RESOLUTION 2015-12; AMENDING THE BUDGETS; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Mr. Diana made a motion to approve the resolution authorizing the FY 16 Budget Amendments. Second 
by Ms. Wright.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
BOT Rules Revision: Elimination of Trustee Departmental Liaison Function 
Ms. Wright reiterated Mr. Cavaliere’s recommendation from the September 9th BOT minutes requesting 
elimination of the Trustee department liaison function. In the minutes, Mr. Cavaliere stated that per the 



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 3 
 

Baenziger report, among other recommendations, the Trustees should not be involved in staff’s day to 
day operations. He stated that staff should only have to report to the Community Manager. Mr. Diana 
voiced his strong support for staff and supports the liaison elimination.  
Ms. Wright made a motion to eliminate the Trustee department liaisons. Second by Mr. Cavaliere. 
Motion and second rescinded. 
The following text was recommended for deletion the Board wishes to enact the proposal by Trustee 
Wright. ARTICLE VI DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF OFFICERS AND TRUSTEES 
Section 1: “Liaise with assigned BBRD department managers, provide perspective to said department 
manager and report on departmental activities at Board of Trustees meetings (under no circumstances 
shall the Trustee liaison provide specific direction to a department manager or individual staff 
member).” 
General Counsel advised that language concerning the liaison under Article VIII will also need to be 
omitted if the Board would like to proceed with the elimination of the department liaison. 
Mr. Diana made a motion to table the resolution and amendments until the November 10, 2016 meeting.  
Second by Ms. Wright. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Manager’s Report 
Staff received notice of Bank of America’s decision to close the branch office at 13555 US1 in Roseland 
effective January 24, 2016. Additionally, we were notified we need to empty the Barefoot Bay safety 
deposit box in said branch office no later than December 23, 2016. Staff will research options for 
additional safety deposit spaces prior to the November 10, 2016 meeting. 
Staff has requested clarification regarding the badge checking policy at Pool 1 during the Christmas 
Parade. Board consensus to waive the badge requirement during the parade. 
 
Attorneys Report  
Guinther vs. Barefoot Bay has been changed to the courthouse on Neiman Avenue in Melbourne at 
9AM on Monday, October 31st presided by Judge Maxwell. 
Space Coast Healthcare has been served a 3-day eviction notice. General Counsel Repperger requested 
direction from the Board concerning proceeding with the eviction or waiting to discuss payment with the 
lessee. Board consensus was to allow the lessee time to remove the items from the space and revisit at 
the next Trustee meeting on November 10th. General Counsel is planning to send the response letter out 
to the owner of 2002 Restaurant this week as previously directed by the Board. 
 
Trustee Liaison Report   
Mr. Klosky gave the ARCC and Violations report. ARCC met on October 18, 2016.  There were six 
permits presented and approved.  Seventeen new home applications have been submitted in 2016 to 
date. The Committee will met again on Tuesday, November 1, 2016 at 9 AM in the Lounge.  All permit 
applications must be received the Tuesday prior to the meeting to be reviewed at an ARCC meeting. 
  



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 4 
 

The Violations Committee did not meet on October 14, 2016.  The next meeting is on October 28th at 
10 AM in Building D/E. To date, the DOR department has mailed 497 letters informing residents of 
storm damage caused by Hurricane Matthew.  Approximately 125 were roof damages and 70 were 
carport damage. Mr. Klosky reported on Property Services for the absent Mr. Lavier. Staff has installed 
a new vehicle lift at the Property Service building, refinished the last two benches in front of building, 
covered damage to building F and continuing cleanup from Hurricane Matthew. Total number of pool 
users for the last fiscal year was 130,520 attendees. Mr. Klosky presented the golf report. The course is 
ready to be over seeded. The engineer provided the initial assessment for the golf course pump house. 
The Breast Cancer Awareness tournament was a success with over $1000 raised. The Golf Fore Tots 
tournament will be held on November 12th and the Sadie Hopkins Tournament on November 19th. Both 
will be an 8:30 shotgun start. The Pro Shop and Golf Course will be closed on November 24th for 
Thanksgiving.  
Ms. Wright presented the Food and Beverage report. The 19th Hole will be closed to install the new 
floor from Tuesday, November 4th through Friday, November 5th.  Service hours will be provided in 
D/E and are posted in our facilities. Replacement bar stools have been ordered for the Lounge and the 
19th Hole. The Halloween Party in the Lounge is this Friday, October 28th.  Prizes for best costume will 
be given out and a decanter of Skull vodka will be raffled off. Free line dancing classes start up again in 
the Lounge on Monday, November 7th from 4:30-5:45. The DOR and Charter Review Committee has 
wrapped up their meetings and have sent their amendments to the Board for review.  A Board of Trustee 
Workshop to review the amendments is scheduled on November 15th at 1PM in Building D/E all 
homeowners are welcome to attend. She read the narrative submitted by Louise Crouse on behalf of the 
Recreation Committee in support of the Community Complex bathrooms on the referendum.   
Mr. Diana was appreciative of the work from the District Clerk’s office. He discussed his absence from 
the last meeting due to an unforeseen personal illness that landed him in Palm Bay Hospital. He stated 
his appreciation for the staff at Palm Bay Hospital as they took great care of him. He asked that residents 
please attend the scheduled Veterans Day events in support of our Veterans. 
Mr. Cavaliere reported the Finance Committee will meet with Oculina Bank. Wells Fargo has chosen 
not to present at the next meeting scheduled on November 3, 2016 at 1:30PM in Building D. 
Mr. Cavaliere commented on information that was brought to his attention regarding a Finance 
Committee member who was openly badgering a staff member about his dissatisfaction with job 
performance of staff members and managers. Mr. Cavaliere commented that the committee member is 
creating a hostile environment for staff. He requested the Board suspended Hurrol Brinker from any 
further duties on all committees he is currently on until the issue is resolved.  
The Board discussed how the issue will be resolved. General Counsel recommended either putting on 
the subsequent Trustee meeting agenda for discussion or choose a delegate to discuss the issue privately 
with staff. Mr. Coffey agreed that the behavior needs to be addressed as it is not an isolated incident. He 
stated that though he does not speak about these issues publically, he is well aware that certain managers 
are overly criticized by committee members. He stated that the Board will have to make the decision that 
is best for them. However, it has been a long standing frustration knowing that certain managers’ job 



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 5 
 

performances are under fire simply because they do not fit into a cookie cutter mold of what some 
committee members think a manager should look like and how they should act. 
Mr. Cavaliere made a motion that the Board suspend Hurrol Brinker until the issue is resolved by 
management. Second by Mr. Diana. Motion carried unanimously.  
Mr. Cavaliere made a motion to select Mr. Diana as the Trustee delegate to discuss the incident 
concerning Hurrol Brinker and staff. Second by Ms. Wright. Mr. Diana abstained. Motion carried 3-1.   
Mr. Diana commented on rumors coming out of the coffee klatches that are being held for a candidate in 
the running for a seat on the Board. He attempted to dispel the outlandish implication that the Trustees 
are misappropriating the funds used for the projects for personal gain. Mr. Klosky remarked that the 
political rhetoric is not acceptable on the Board as we are here to conduct District business only. 
Ms. Wilma Weglein stated that the recent Candidate Forum was a success and several top candidates 
were on hand to address the residents. She stated that she has hoped that some people running for the 
seat of Trustees were there early to greet the candidates running for Senate and the House. Trunk or 
Treat will be held on Monday, October 31, 2016. The C.O.P.S. will be in attendance to help monitor the 
traffic and crowds. On Tuesday, November 1st, the HOA will hold their monthly Board meeting in 
Building D/E everyone is welcome to attend. On November 11th at 7PM in Building A, the HOA will 
hold their General Meeting. The speaker will be SSgt. Lavondre Chamberlin from the 45th Medical 
Group on Patrick Air Force Base. There will be a special presentation for the Veterans at the end of the 
night as well. Mr. Cavaliere inquired about the status of the tornado alarm research. Ms. Weglein stated 
that the old tornado alarm at the fire station is disabled but she offered the information from the HOA 
newsletter regarding sign up for automatic emergency alert calls. She confirmed that nominations from 
the floor will take place at the General Meeting on November 11, 2016 for a seat on the HOA Board. 
 
Incidental Trustee Remarks  
Ms. Wright requested clarification from General Counsel regarding what would need to happen in order 
to abolish the District. In summary, General Counsel stated that according to the Charter, the District 
would have to have all debts paid, a majority vote from the Board to put the question out on referendum 
to the homeowners who would have the final decision on that issue. 
Mr. Klosky announced the Christmas Parade will be on December 4, 2016 starting at Building D/E. 
Anyone interested in helping or joining please contact Mr. Klosky or leave a message for Mr. Klosky at 
570.the Administrative office in Building F.  
Mr. Cavaliere presented his position on why he recommended putting the tennis court restrooms on a 
referendum and not Building F.  In his opinion, for a project as important as Building F putting on 
referendum would not best serve the residents as some homeowners are not permitted to vote due to 
registration and resident status in Florida. He stated that polling the residents in census type questions 
will best address what the residents really want. 
 
 
 
 



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 6 
 

Audience Participation  
Mr. Harold Wortman commented on the question of his support to the Board of Trustees. He clarified 
that he is in support of the Board of Trustees and would not be running for a seat on the Board if the 
opposite were true. 
Mr. Greg Deslandes thanked Sue Cuddie and the DOR department for sending the hurricane damage 
assessment to the residents still up North. It was greatly appreciated. He commented on the case 
Guinther vs. BBRD stating that if Guinther prevails, the District must abide by a referendum vote for 
Building F. If the judge decides in favor of the District, they will not have a limit concerning 
maintenance of existing buildings and equipment. He advocated voting for trustees that support the 
$25,000 spending cap.  Mr. Klosky interjected that political positions are not acceptable at the Trustee 
meetings. Mr. Deslandes stated that he provided a possible solution to the referendum issue to Mr. 
Cavaliere and it is in the November Tattler Sound Off. He wished all candidates good luck in the 
upcoming election. 
Ms. Mary Ellen Davis commented on the golf member disparagement between single and married 
member’s dues. She voiced her dissatisfaction regarding the fact that she pays 34% more dues than 
those of her married counterparts. Mr. Klosky suggested Ms. Ellen attend the golf committee to voice 
her concern. Ms. Wright stated that she was aware of her concern and upon Mr. Cruz’s request was 
planning to attend the next Golf Committee to discuss further. Mr. Cavaliere suggested placing the topic 
on a future agenda. 
Mr. Jack Reddy called attention to the deputy in the back of the meeting room, stating that officers like 
him and his counterparts launched a successful raid on drug houses in the Bay and deserve our support. 
He hoped that the newly elected Trustees would be supportive of the deputy presence in Barefoot Bay. 
Ms. Carol Joseph commented on the differences between the HOA and the District. Homeowners are 
automatically members of the HOA. The HOA is a social organization that plans political events and 
provides activities and services for the residents of Barefoot Bay. The District makes financial decisions 
and decisions on Policy in the Bay. The two entities are not in competition as they have completely 
separate functions.  
 
Adjournment 
The next meeting will be on November 10, 2016 at 1PM in Building D/E. 
Mr. Cavaliere made a motion to adjourn. Second by Mr. Diana.  Motion carried unanimously. 
Meeting adjourned at 9:34PM. 
 
 
__________________________________              ____________________________ 
Steve Diana, Secretary      Dawn Myers, District Clerk 





Meeting Date  
Dec. 9, 2016 
   
   

Agenda 
Section 9  
Item No    E

 
Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Finance Advisory Committee (FAC) Recommendation: New Banking 
 
Dept/Office: Administration - Finance 
 
Requested Action: Direction to Staff 
 
Summary Explanation and Background: 
 
On 26Jul16 BOT meeting, the Board authorized the Finance Advisory Committee to research 
banking options under staff outlines and bring back to the Board for final decision.  
 
On 04Aug16 FAC meeting, the Committee considered interviewing 8 banks and voted to 
 have staff contact six banks (Seacoast Bank, Oculina Bank, TD Bank, Valley National Bank, 

PNC Bank and SunTrust Bank) 
 exclude two banks from consideration (Bank of America and Wells Fargo) 
 
On 08Sep16, Seacoast Bank presented its proposal to the FAC.  Additionally, the FAC voted to  
 include from future considerations three banks (Wells Fargo, Bank of America and Valley 

National Bank ) 
 exclude from future considerations two banks (PNC Bank and TD Bank) because they could 

not offer all requested services.  
 
On 03Nov16 FAC meeting: 
 The FAC was informed that Valley National Bank and Wells Fargo were not interested in 

submitting a bid.  
 Oculina Bank presented its proposal to the FAC.   
 The FAC was informed that Bank of America notified staff of a 203% increase in monthly 

fees from $331 to $1,004. 
 
On 03Nov16, the FAC voted to recommend the BOT have Oculina Bank make a presentation to 
the BOT. 
 
Staff seeks direction from the BOT regarding this matter. 

 
Exhibits Attached: 03Nov16 FAC minutes 
Contact: Kimi Cheng, Finance Manager; Frank Cavaliere, Trustee and FAC Liaison; Jeanne 
Osborne, FAC Acting Chairperson 
Fiscal Impact: TBD  
Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 
Community Manager’s Approval:  
 
 
 
 



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 1 
 

   Finance Advisory Committee Minutes 
Thursday, November 3, 2016 

             2:30PM–Building D 
 
Welcome 
Ms. Osborne called the meeting to order at 2:34pm 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call 
Committee Members Present:  Ms. Jeanne Osborne, Mr. Bob Peet, Ms. Wilma Weglein and 
Mr. Ed Geier.   
Also present:  Frank Cavaliere, Kimi Cheng, John Coffey, Lee Wright and Steve Diana. 
Committee Members Absent:  Ms. Linda Pellegrino. 
 
Ms. Osborne asked if Ms. Weglein would like to fill in for a member so that the Committee 
would have three members to conduct business.  
 
Minutes 
Ms. Weglein made a motion to approve the Finance Committee meeting minutes  from 
September 8, 2016. Second by Mr. Peet. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Recommendation to Board of Trustees of Alternate Member to Fill Current Vacant 
Position 
Mr. Peet nominated Ms. Weglein to fill the vacant position. Second by Mr. Geier. Motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
Request Board of Trustees to Select an Alternate Position 
Mr. Geier suggested to send a recommendation to the Board asking for an absence policy. Ms. 
Osborne strongly agreed with the recommendation. Ms. Osborne asked the Finance Liaison, 
Frank, if that was a policy that the Committee could make. Frank replied that the Committee 
could recommend to BOT to remove the missing party of the Committee since they were not 
doing anything. Mr. Peet proposed to have a general absenteeism policy which applied to all 
Committees.  
 
Mr. Geier made a motion to recommend to the Board establish a general absenteeism policy 
and to remove committee members who have four consecutive unexcused meetings from the 
Committee(s). Second by Ms. Weglein. Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Oculina Bank Presentation 
Gretchen Frazier and Diana Best were the representatives from Oculina Bank. Ms. Frazier 
started the presentation with history of the bank and proposal for services, then full analysis 
on checking account, additional services and lending services, and lastly questions and 
answers session. 



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 2 
 

Ms. Frazier stated that Oculina Bank is a 12 year old bank based on Treasure Coast. Its 
headquarters are in Vero Beach, Florida. All of its executives are living in Treasure Coast, so 
all decisions are made locally and fast.  
The bank is one of the six largest SBA Lenders and one of the fastest growing lending 
institutions in the State of Florida.  
Ms. Frazier stated that Oculina Bank could offer BBRD 0.60% interest rate on Money Market 
Account as compared to 0.03% currently offered by Bank of America. 
Ms. Frazier proposed a service charge free account to BBRD which would offer BBRD free 
Remote Deposit Capture service, provide lockbox service at no charge and a possible annual 
savings of over $2,900. 
Mr. Peet asked if the bank offered courier service. Ms. Frazier replied no.  
Mr. Cavaliere asked if BBRD could establish a working line of credit that could turn into 
permanent financing given the proper information and financial statements. Ms. Frazier replied 
“Absolutely.” 
Mr. Peet asked if BBRD would have a designated Account Manager. Ms. Frazier replied yes 
and would be Kristie Woodward. 
Mr. Cavaliere asked if BBRD would put more money in Money Market Account, it would 
generate a higher return and BBRD would still have access to  those funds at least 6 times a 
month. Ms. Frazier replied it was correct.  
Mr. Coffey clarified the current District’s operating policy, which money could only be 
transferred between accounts by the action of Board of Trustees in public meeting through 
adoption of Resolutions.  Staff never had and currently do not have access to transfer or 
withdraw money from the District’s bank accounts.  
Ms. Frazier mentioned that the bank had extremely competitive ladder CDs which offered 2% 
in return.  
Ms. Cheng emphasized again that only Board of Trustees has the ability to transfer money 
among BBRD bank accounts but none of the staff can do it.  
Mr. Diana expressed that he would not support the recommendation of changing BBRD policy 
to fit any vendors.  
 
Discussion of Valley National Bank, Seacoast Bank, Wells Fargo and Bank of America 
Emails 
Ms. Cheng stated that Valley National Bank and Wells Fargo expressed that they were not 
interested submitting a bid. Seacoast Bank sent an email regarding different options for line of 
credits and interest rates for loans. Bank of America submitted a new bank charge fee 
proposal. 
Mr. Geier was against inviting Bank of America. Mr. Peet summarized that BBRD only has 
two bank options: Seacoast Bank and Oculina Bank and he was impressed with both.  
 
Mr. Geier made a motion to have Oculina Bank make a presentation to Board of Trustees. 
Second by Wilma. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Mr. Peet made a motion to adjourn. Second by Ms. Weglein.  
 
Meeting Adjourned at 3:27PM. 



Meeting Date  
Dec. 09, 2016 
   
   

Agenda 
Section 9  
Item No    F

 
Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Recreation Advisory Committee Recommendation: Soccer Field 
 
Dept/Office: Property Services: Recreation 
 
Requested Action: Accept/Reject Recommendation 
 
Summary Explanation and Background: 
 
At the 28Jun BOT meeting, Trustee Diana requested staff review the concept of installing a 
soccer field behind the shopping center and forward a recommendation back to the BOT. 
Staff subsequently referred the issue to the Recreation Advisory Committee (RAC).  At the 
17Nov16 RAC meeting the following motion was approved: 
 
 Not to proceed with investigating a soccer field (motion by Richard Schwatlow, seconded  

by Grace Peet and passed 5-1) 
 
Staff requests the BOT formally adopt/reject the recommendation from the RAC and direct 
staff on how to proceed. 
 
Exhibits Attached: Draft RAC 17Nov16 meeting minutes 
Contact: Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager; John W. Coffey, Community Manager; Lee 
Wright, Trustee and RAC Liaison; RAC Chair 
Fiscal Impact: TBD 
Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: No 
Community Manager’s Approval:  
 
 
 
 
 



Draft Recreation committee meeting 11-17-16 minutes 

 

-Attendance- Donna Bond, Lee Wright, Richard Schwatlow, Louise Crouse, Grace Pete, Bob Escot 

Audience- Nancy Eisley, Wilma Wiglin, Hurrol Brinker 

Excused- Richard Moran, Ann Manzo, Kathy Lesh 

 

Meeting called to order at 02:00 pm 

A Motion was made to accept the minutes as corrected made by Louise C.  Second by Richard S. 

-Review of the motion tracker- 

A motion was made to remove #8 from the list (investigate a children’s Christmas party) made by Louise 

second by grace   6-yes   0-no 

A motion was made to cancel #10 from the list (table the water volleyball until the next meeting) made 

by Richard second by Grace    6-yes   0-no 

A motion was made to combine #9 and #16 (not to proceed looking into a children’s playground on kiwi 

and proceed with research of another playground) made by Louise second by Grace    6-yes   1-no 

A motion was made to mark #12 (Forward an information survey with the addition of an address line to 

the HOA) as complete made by Louise second by Richard    6-yes   0-no 

There was a discussion on the trunk or treat night there was some confusion during the event so a 

motion was made that a representative from the HOA and designee from the recreation committee plan 

next year’s event for trunk or treat made by Louise second by Grace   6-yes   0-no 

A motion was made to not precede with the picnic tables with game inserts made by Grace second by 

Louise   5-yes   1-no 

The soccer field was discussed again Matt Goetz brought some options for the committee to consider 

and there was a lot of discussion but there was a motion made not to proceed with investigating a 

soccer field made by Richard second by Grace    5-yes   1-no 

A motion was made by Louise for the recreation committee to disassociate themselves from the 

children’s Christmas party second by Richard   6-yes   0-no 

Richard made a couple suggestions for the 5 year plan  

1. He would like to see the beach volleyball revisited  

2. Tetherball  



3. Dog park 

The committee directed him to see the community manager. There was also some discussion on the 

beach and an indoor swimming pool 

A motion was made by Louise to adjourn the meeting second by Grace    6-yes    0-no 

  

  

 

 



Meeting Date  
Dec. 09, 2016 
   
   

Agenda 
Section 9  
Item No    G

 
Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Replacement Golf Cart Award of Contract 
 
Dept/Office: R&M/Capital 
 
Requested Action: Award of Contract 
 
Summary Explanation and Background: 
 
The FY17 Budget contains $9,000 in the R&M/Capital Department for the replacement of a 2011 
golf cart used by the Property Services Department.  The type of golf cart currently in use is no 
longer available and staff researched the best alternate options resulting in the identification of a 
Toro Workman GTX grounds utility vehicle as the best choice.  Staff believes this type of utility 
vehicle should hold up much better as it is designed to be used for the type of work Property 
Services does as opposed to less demanding work of a golf course. 
 
The state bid price for said unit with desired customization is $8,679.73, which is 21% (or 
$2,307.27) lower than retail costs. 
 
Staff recommends the BOT award contract of $8,679.73 to WestcoTurf, based on state 
contracting price, for a Toro Workman GTX utility vehicle as detailed in the attachment. 
 
 
Exhibits Attached: State bid quote and vendor information 
Contact: Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager; and John W. Coffey, Community Manager  
Fiscal Impact: $8,679.73 (FY17 Budget of $9,000) 
Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: No 
Community Manager’s Approval:  
 
 
 
 
 



 

          

2101 Cantu Court, Sarasota FL 34232          300 Technology Park, Lake Mary FL 32746       7037-37 Commonwealth Avenue, Jacksonville, FL  32220 

 
November 30, 2016 

 
Matt Goetz, Property Services Assistant  
Barefoot Bay Rec District  
895 Falcon Dr 
Barefoot Bay, FL  32976 
 

Quote #: Q-00002893 
 
 

 
State Contract Number:  21100000-15-1 

All pricing is valid for thirty (30) days 

Qty Model No Description MSRP Discount Net Price Extended 
Price 

Requested 
Delivery/HOC 

1 07130 Toro Workman GTX 9,286.00 21.00 8,679.73 $8,679.73 _________ 

1 07134 Bucket Seat Kit 429.00 21.00  

1 07140 Canopy, 2-Seat 669.00 21.00  

1 07151 Windshield For Canopy 300.00 21.00  

1 07145 Brush Guard 303.00 21.00  

        

 
Terms: Net 30 Days  

Equipment Total $ 8,679.73  
State Sales Tax (6.00% + 0.50% County Surtax) $ 0.00  

Total $ 8,679.73 
 

 

 
Please indicate your acceptance of this quote as an order by signing below and returning via e-signature or via fax to Wesco Turf at 
941.487.6889.  Please include your preference for height of cut and requested delivery dates where applicable. 
 

   Signed:   {{Sig_es_:signer1:signature}} 

Name:  {{N_es_:signer1:fullname}}  

Date:   {{Dte_es_:signer1:date}}   

 
The above quote meets or exceeds ANSI Safety Specification.  Toro Commercial Equipment carries a two-year or 1500 hour 

warranty.         

The preceding pricing is good for 30 days, not including Sales Tax, after which time new pricing would have to be submitted.  Time of 

delivery may vary; please check when placing order.  All payments are subject to state and local taxes.    



 

Quote #: Q-00002893            Page 2 of 2 

 

Thank you for considering Wesco Turf, Inc. for your equipment needs.  If I can be of any further assistance, please do not hesitate to 

contact me.           

Sincerely, 

Bill Wallace        

WESCO TURF, INC.     
Bill Wallace  
Commercial Golf / Sports Fields & Grounds Territory Manager 
Golf Commercial 
Lake Mary 
bill.wallace@wescoturf.com     



 

    Page 1 of 1     

  
Attachment F – ITB No. 20-21100000-C 

Agriculture & Lawn Equipment 
State of Florida 

Vendor Information Form 

 

Solicitation Number: ITB No. 20-21100000-C 
Agriculture & Lawn Equipment 

Please ensure the Ordering Instructions information provided in this form matches the 
MyFloridaMarketPlace ("MFMP") Vendor Registration account information:  Florida Vendor 
Information Portal. DO NOT CHANGE THE FORMAT OF THIS FORM! 

 

RESPONDENT NAME: WESCO TURF, INC. 

RESPONDENT FEID NO.: 59-2763187 

STREET ADDRESS: 2101 CANTU COURT 

CITY, STATE and ZIP: SARASOTA, FL 34232 

INTERNET ADDRESS: www.wescoturf.com 

TELEPHONE NO.: 941-377-6777 
TOLL-FREE NO.: 800-486-8873 
FAX NO.: 941-371-2967 

Person Responsible For Administering The Contract  
NAME: Ron DiCicco  

TITLE: 
VP Residential Landscape 
Contractor & Sports Field & Ground 
Division 

 

STREET ADDRESS: 2101 Cantu Court  
CITY, STATE and ZIP: Sarasota, FL 34232  
E-MAIL ADDRESS: Ron.dicicco@wescoturf.com  
TELEPHONE NO.: 941-377-6777  
TOLL-FREE NO.: 800-486-8873  
CELL PHONE NO.: 941-650-5698  
FAX NO.: 941-371-2967  
Ordering and Remit-To Information   Please provide information where Customers should direct 
orders. You must provide a regular mailing address and e-mail address.  If equipped to receive 
purchase orders electronically, you may also provide an Internet Address.   

REMIT-TO: Wesco Turf, Inc. 

REMIT-TO STREET 
ADDRESS: 2101 Cantu Court 

REMIT-TO CITY, STATE 
and ZIP CODE: Sarasota, FL 34232 

REMIT-TO EMAIL and/or 
INTERNET ADDRESS: Sondra.gay@wescoturf.com  

https://vendor.myfloridamarketplace.com/vms-web/spring/login;jsessionid=29EB6FA730BCDBB4B151BDFC35CFB6D9.jvm2?execution=e1s1
https://vendor.myfloridamarketplace.com/vms-web/spring/login;jsessionid=29EB6FA730BCDBB4B151BDFC35CFB6D9.jvm2?execution=e1s1
http://www.wescoturf.com/
mailto:Ron.dicicco@wescoturf.com
mailto:Sondra.gay@wescoturf.com


Meeting Date  
Dec. 09, 2016 
   
   

Agenda 
Section 9  
Item No    H

 
Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Resident Relations Postage Machine Lease Renewal 
 
Dept/Office: Resident Relations 
 
Requested Action: Authorization for Chairman Klosky to Sign Lease Renewal 
 
Summary Explanation and Background: 
 
Historically, BBRD has utilized one-year leases for the Resident Relations’ Postage machine 
at a current annual renewal rate of $357.00 plus tax.  Neopost, offers a two-year renewal at 
$267.72 plus tax, a savings of $89.28 per year. 
 
Due to the Policy Manual requirement (page 2-9) that “the Board of Trustees must approve 
and the Chair of the Board must execute contracts that exceed one year (1) in duration….” 
this item is before the BOT for consideration. 
 
Staff recommends the BOT approve the two-year lease renewal with Neopost for $89.28 plus 
tax. 
 
Exhibits Attached: Lease Renewal Form and Email Correspondence 
Contact: Sue Cuddie, Resident Relations Manager; or John W. Coffey, Community Manager 
Fiscal Impact: $89.28 plus tax per year 
Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: No 
Community Manager’s Approval:  
 
 
 
 
 











Meeting Date  
Dec. 09, 2016 
   
   

Agenda 
Section 9  
Item No    I

 
Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Confirmation of 2016 CCTV Project Change Order 
 
Dept/Office: R&M/Capital 
 
Requested Action: Confirmation of Change Order Approval 
 
Summary Explanation and Background: 
 
During the FY17 5yrFM&CIP workshops, the BOT adopted a recommendation to expend 
$25,000 during FY16 for replacement and expansion of the CCTV system. On 24May16, the 
BOT awarded a contract to ATP for replacement and expansion of the CCTV system. In 
addition to the CCTV vendor, the project required the installation of conduit (performed in 
house), fiber installation (by different vendor) and electrical work (performed by different 
vendor).  Due to the fiber and electrical needs for the third camera at the playground (which 
was not considered within the original scoping of the project), a change order for the fiber 
installation was solicited and approved by staff.  Unfortunately, Policy Manual requirements 
(pages 2-9) for the approval of the change order and total cost of the fiber were not followed 
(BOT approval is required and staff inadvertently signed off on the change order).  The 
expenses and projected remaining costs for the project are listed below. 
 

Date Project Payment

6/4/2016 CCTV 1st Installment 6,310.00    

6/15/2016 CCTV 2nd Installment 6,310.00    

8/2/2016  Deposit for Fiber Run Bldg A-Bldg F & Lounge -Playground 3,191.25    

8/2/2016 Balance for Fiber 3,191.25    

9/23/2016 Conduit for Fiber/Electrical 379.10       

11/17/2016 Additional Fiber Run at Playground for 3rd Camera 2,711.23    

11/17/2016 Deposit for Electrical Run Lounge to Playground 735.00       

11/30/2016 Balance Electrical Run Lounge to Playground 1,627.25    

Sub-Total 24,455.08 

Pending CCTV Final Payment 6,310.00    

Projected Total 30,765.08 

FY16 CCTV Project Expenditure History

 
 
Of note, the $11,383.48 (incurred in FY17) are being expensed to the FY17 CCTV project 
line-item while the $19,381.60 was expensed in FY16. 
 
Staff recommends the BOT confirm the change order approval for additional fiber optic 
installation to Hunter Communications in the amount of $2,711.23. 
 



Exhibits Attached: 24May16 BOT Agenda memo (award of original contract) and minutes, 
10Jun16 BOT agenda memo (ATP Change order) and minutes, invoice from Hunter 
Communications for change order, Excerpt from Policy Manual, Summary of project 
expenditures and projected total expenditures 
Contact: Dawn Myers, District Clerk; or John W. Coffey, Community Manager 
Fiscal Impact: $2,711.23 (Change order) and total fiber cost of $9,093.73 
Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: No 
Community Manager’s Approval:  
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Date  
May 24, 2016 
   
   

Agenda 
Section 9  
Item No    B

 
Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

 

Subject:  CCTV Replacement and Expansion Project 
 
Dept/Office: Administration: District Clerk 
 
Requested Action: Award of Contract 
 
Summary Explanation and Background: 
On January 6, 2016, ADS Security General Manager, Adam Gaffney, met with District Clerk, 
Dawn Myers, Facilities Planning Chair and Security Committee Vice Chair, Mr. E.J. Wright and 
Trustee, Ms. Lee Wright to discuss options for additional, digital, wide range security cameras for 
the community complex and Building D/E complex. IT bandwidth availability, fiber optics, type 
of equipment and location options were discussed. The first quote for new camera installation 
was submitted to staff the following day to include (4) 180 degree wide ranging cameras. 
Additionally, Vice Chair, Mr. E.J. Wright solicited additional quotes which resulted with two of 
the three vendors sought, dropping out of the bidding process. Three quotes were recommended 
so the search for additional vendors continued. 
 
On January 28, 2016 the Board of Trustees endorsed the proposed 5Year Fiscal Model and 
Capital Improvement Plan (5YrFM&CIP) which contained $25,000 for Phase I of the proposed 
camera install for FY16 and a subsequent $25,000 for FY17 designated for Phase II of a 
community wide security camera project. 
 
The proposal was reviewed in the Facilities, Finance and Security Committees for further 
discussion. Finance and Facilities Committees recommended forwarding final decision to lie with 
the Security committee. After another tour of the proposed locations with the second vendor, Mr. 
Wright followed the recommendations from ATP Security and revised the options to include 
additional locations with a reduction in the quantity of the costly 180 degree camera. The original 
vendor provided a revised quote to match. 
 
On March 10, 2016 the Security Committee approved the CCTV proposal as a FY16 Budget 
Amendment and FY17 proposal for inclusion in the FY17 Proposed Working Draft Budget. 
 
On April 4, 2016 the Board reached a consensus on the FY17 Proposed Budget including the 
CCTV proposal at the final BOT Budget Workshop. This project will require a budget 
amendment as it is not a FY16 Budgeted item.  
 
Currently, staff is in possession of (2) quotes, as traditionally recommended, since a 3rd additional 
vendor solicited for quotes subsequently dropped out of the bidding process.   



ADS ATP 
Installation $19,983 $18,930
Maintenance $1,992 $1,300
SubTotal $21,975 $20,230

*Fiber $6,327 $6,327
Total $28,302 $26,557

*Not to exceed  
The above cost of fiber installation between Bldg A and Bldg F and also between the Lounge and 
the playground (as listed above) is the maximum cost for the part of the project. Staff is seeking a 
2nd quote for the fiber installation.  
 
Although BBRD has an ongoing contractual relationship with ADS, staff recommends the BOT 
award the contract to ATP for $18,930 based on the reduced initial and annual cost. Staff will 
bring back as a budget amendment using fund balance to cover the cost.  
 
 
Exhibits Attached:  Quotes from ADS and ATP  
Contact: Dawn Myers, District Clerk or E.J. Wright, Facilities Planning Committee Chair and 
Security Committee Vice Chair  
Fiscal Impact: Not to exceed $26,557 for the first 12 months 
Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 
Community Manager’s Approval:  
 
 
 
  



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 1 
 

  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
Tuesday, May 24, 2016 

             7 P.M. –Building D&E 
 
The Barefoot Bay Recreation District held a Regular Meeting on May 24, 2016 in Building D&E, 1225 
Barefoot Boulevard, Barefoot Bay, Florida. Mr. Klosky called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 
Thought for the Day 
Mr. Klosky asked for a moment of silence to honor our service personnel both past and present who 
have helped protect our country. He also asked to remember our Barefoot Bay residents. 
Mr. Diana led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
Roll Call 
Present: Mr. Klosky, Ms. Wright and Mr. Diana Mr. Lavier and Mr. Cavaliere were excused. Also 
present: John W. Coffey, Community Manager, General Counsel Cliff Repperger and Dawn Myers, 
District Clerk.  
Memorial Day Proclamation 
Mr. Klosky presented the Memorial Day Proclamation to Mr. Ray Bourgault, American Legion Post 
Commander.  
Minutes 
Ms. Wright made a motion to approve the minutes from May 13, 2016. Second by Mr. Diana. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
Treasurer’s Report 
Mr. Diana presented the Treasurer’s Report for May 24, 2016.  
Ms. Wright made a motion to accept the Treasurer’s Report.  Second by Mr. Diana.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
Audience Participation (Agenda items only) 
None brought forward 
Old Business 
None brought forward 
New Business 
FY17 Proposed Budget Mailout 
Per BBRD Policy Manual, section 2.8, the Board shall “adopt proposed draft for mail out to community 
and hear comments from both Trustees and citizens.”  Staff requested Board approval of FY17 Proposed 
Budget for mail out to property owners. 
Mr. Diana made a motion to accept the FY17 Budget mail out. Second by Ms. Wright. Motion carried 
unanimously.  
Camera Replacement and Expansion  
On April 4, 2016 the Board reached a consensus on the FY17 Proposed Budget including the CCTV 
proposal at the final BOT Budget Workshop. This project will require a budget amendment as it is not a 
FY16 Budgeted item.   



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 2 
 

Mr. Diana made a motion to accept the quote from ATP Security for $18,930 plus $1300 for first year 
maintenance of the CCTV system. Second by Ms. Wright. Motion carried unanimously.  
Manager’s Report 
Mr. Coffey announced the Brevard County Emergency Management Services will host the annual 
informational meeting regarding hurricane preparation and evaluation procedures on June 3, 2016 in 
Buiding A at 2:30pm. He stated that Resident Relations will have extended hours and open on one 
Saturday (in June) to allow residents who do not find it convenient to renew their badges during our 
normal operating hours.  Specific special hours include: 
Monday 23May16: Open till 5:30pm 
Tuesday 24May16: Open till 5:30pm 
Friday 27May16: Open till 7pm 
Saturday 4Jun16: 10m-2pm 
Mr. Coffey announced the closure of the 19th Hole from June 5th-June 8th for maintenance and other 
activities that cannot be accomplished during normal operating hours.  Food & Beverage staff will have 
limited hours of operations in D/E to offer as much service as possible. 
Merchandise Sales under Golf Operations Manager Ernie Cruz continues to outpace historic 
performances. Please see below for details. 

 
Mr. Coffey requested the Board schedule the BOT Workshop on June 10, 2016 at 11am for Todd 
Wodraska, SDS President, to present a briefing on “running effective public meetings.” Staff anticipates 
the presentation to last no more than 60 minutes with a break for lunch between the workshop and the 
Board of Trustees meeting. 
Attorney’s Report 
General Counsel Repperger commented on the case on 1015 Thrush. Due to evidence that the owner’s 
mail may have been tampered with resulting in them not receiving the violations notices, the case will be 
held until May 31st to allow time for the owner to remedy the issues. He will then follow up after next 
week. The previously discussed case on 730 Canary will be on the first agenda in June to give the owner 
an opportunity to appear before the Board. At this time the Board can decide if fees will be waived or to 
proceed with the case. General Counsel addressed a memorandum from the County stating an opinion 
on the possible abolishment of the District and also presented a perplexing position which essentially 
asserted that BBRD is not an independent Special District under F.S. 189. He stated that he will draft a 
response to the memorandum and will forward that response to the Trustees. 
Mr. Diana requested an update on the insurance claim for the entrance wall. General Counsel has not 
heard back from Traveler’s Insurance but will follow up with Board. Mr. Diana requested information 
on the sale of 710 Barefoot Blvd. Mr. Coffey stated that the buyer has other properties in Barefoot Bay 



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 3 
 

and is not out of state. General Counsel added that the buyer is well aware of the liens against the 
property.  
Trustee Liaison Report 
Mr. Klosky reported the ARCC met on May 3rd in the lounge at 9 AM.  He stated 14 permits were 
issued and 1 application was tabled. The next ARCC meeting is May 17, 2016 at 9AM in the Lounge. 
The Violations Committee met on April 22, 2016.  He stated 18 cases were found in violation. This 
morning at 10 AM, the committee met and 16 cases were presented to the committee.  All were found in 
violation. The next Violations Committee meeting is on May 27, 2016 at 10 AM in Building D &E. 
Mr. Klosky read the Property Services report on behalf of Mr. Lavier who was excused. Stairs were 
installed at the 15th tee, the Garden Club shed replacement project is now complete and a new pump and 
handrail was installed at the pier.  Please be aware badges expired in April and will need to be renewed 
in order to gain entry to the amenities.  
Ms. Wright announced the closing of the 19th Hole for ceiling tile replacement and painting in the 
kitchen from June 6th – June 10th.  Music Bingo will be held in the Lounge on Monday June 6th for one 
night only 5:30pm-8pm. There will be no Pasta Night on Wednesday and Vince Love will be in the 
Lounge from 5pm-8pm on Thursday June 9th. Breakfast will be available at 7am on Saturday June 11th 
in the 19th Hole. Tickets on sale for the Father’s Day Street Dance and Clam Bake for $12 at the Lounge 
Resident Relations and the 19th Hole. Guests must have a guest pass to get into the pool area. 
Mr. Diana reported no issues with the District Clerk’s office and thanked the Chairman of the Facilities 
Planning Committee and the members for their efforts. They are currently working on the official usage 
of the buildings as he requested at their last committee meeting. 
Trustee’s Incidental Remarks 
Ms. Wright commented on a topic from the last meeting regarding Trustees attending conferences. She 
read from F.S. 189.063 Education Programs for New Members of District Governing Bodies. Some of 
the courses recommended for the newly elected members include Code of Ethics, Public Records, Public 
Finance and Parliamentary Procedures all topics covered at the last conference she attended. She 
requested a budget for the trustees that want to attend these conferences.   
She thanked Ms. Myers and Facilities Planning Committee for their diligence in getting the CCTV 
project brought up to the FY16 budget and brought to the Board for approval. She stated she was very 
pleased with the results of this project. 
Audience Participation 
Ms. Carol Paskoroso voiced a concern about the rescheduled Aqua Zumba class. She did not believe this 
was fair as the Aqua Zumba’s class is only one hour. She went on to explain that some of these residents 
cannot use any other recreational activities and stated that this is a very beneficial activity for the many 
resident. Ms. Merry Baker spoke on behalf of the Zumba’s members request to hold classes on Tuesday, 
Wednesday and Thursday from 2pm-3pm. Ms. Karen Gallagher read a letter distributed to the members 
regarding the removal of one of their Aqua Zumba practice days. 
Mr. Klosky stated that he does not see a problem with allowing the Zumba class to maintain the 
schedule for one hour on the three days for four months. Mr. Coffey stated that he wanted to maintain 
fairness for all involved when he removed one practice day for Aqua Zumba. Ms. Wright stated that she 
was in favor of the program but believed we should support Mr. Coffey’s decision to remove one of the 
days. Mr. Diana stated that he was not opposed to the three days but asked if they would stick with one 



BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 
 

Page | 4 
 

day on Saturday. He also was not in favor of deciding this topic this late in the meeting as it was not 
placed on the agenda. 
Board consensus to allow the Zumba class to continue with the original schedule Tuesday, Wednesday 
and Thursday from 2-3pm and revisit the schedule after four months. 
Ms. Loretta Dorn commented on the misinformation in the calendar and on the calendar online 
regarding the time for the Recreation Committee.  
Ms. Mary Weller asked about cost to the District for Mr. Wodraska to speak to the District on running 
an effective public meeting. Mr. Coffey stated that there would be no cost with the exception of lunch 
and the gas to drive here from the SDS office in West Palm. 
Mr. Ernest Loening stated that there is a dilapidated home with a roof that needs repair and he would 
like to see this addressed. He commented on the lack of compensation for the entrance wall yet we 
would not still be waiting if the Board would have decided to build the wall back as he recommended. 
Mr. Rich Schwatlow requested that residents not listen to rumors but read the minutes to the Recreation 
Committee for accurate information. 
Ms. Carol Joseph announced that the little free library is here and encouraged the residents to take 
advantage of the free books available at the shopping center. 
Mr. Bob Kahl stated that the HOA van will be traveling to the Bushnell Cemetery on Memorial Day for 
any interested parties. Please call him if interested 202-4139. He thanked the Veteran’s Council who 
will pay for the gas for the trip 
Mr. Ray Bourgault, Chairman of the Veteran’s Council thanked the trustees for the approval of a locker 
for the Veterans. Until now he has been sharing a locker with two other clubs that he has no knowledge 
of and has had items disappear over time. He asked for a permanent office for the veterans here in 
Barefoot Bay. Mr. Coffey stated the Board will have to make that decision. Mr. Bourgault asked Mr. 
Klosky to attend this Memorial Day’s event and participate in the laying of the wreath ceremony. Mr. 
Klosky was honored to accept the request. 
Mr. Diana requested the District Clerk organize a sheriff deputy presence at the next District meeting in 
an effort to discuss the COPS program and bring more attention to this program. He also asked that we 
place a topic regarding adoption of a Barefoot Bay Slogan on the next agenda.  
Adjourn 
Next meeting on Friday, June 10, 2016 at 1PM in Building D/E. 
Ms. Wright  made a motion to adjourn. Second by Mr. Diana.   
Meeting adjourned 3:20 p.m. 
 
 
__________________________________              ____________________________ 
Steve Diana, Secretary      Dawn Myers, District Clerk 



Meeting Date  
June 10, 2016 
   
   

Agenda 
Section 8  
Item No    B

 
Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  CCTV Replacement and Expansion Project - Change Order 
 
Dept/Office: Administration/District Clerk 
 
Requested Action: Approve Change Order 
 
Summary Explanation and Background: 
 
The CCTV Phase I Project was awarded by the Board of Trustees at the May 24, 2016 
meeting to American Total Protection (ATP) for a total of $18, 930 for installation. 
 
In the subsequent tour of the areas designated for camera installation the ATP 
representative realized that a necessary piece of equipment, the NVR, was inadvertently 
left off the original quotes provided to BBRD for the Building D/E and ProShop 
complex. 
 
The initial vendor misinterpreted the distance the current fiber optic cabling in the 
building D/E complex extended to and subsequently did not deem it necessary to submit 
a quote for an NVR at that location. The second vendor quote followed the same 
parameters as the first, as stated in BBRD procurement policy. 
 
Upon discovery of this essential requirement, ATP informed the District Clerk that they 
will need to provide an additional quote for the NVR in the Building D/E location as 
follows: 
 

 Digital Watchdog 16 Channel NVR (same manufacturer of the Blackjack Cube) 
with 8 TB of storage - $2,135.00. 

 
The additional amount will raise the total cost for installation from $18,930 to $21,065. 

 Staff recommends the approval of the change order for $2,135.         

 

Exhibits Attached: May 24, 2016 Agenda Memo  
Contact: Dawn Myers, District Clerk and/or E.J. Wright, Facilities Planning Committee 
Chair and Security Committee Vice Chair 
Fiscal Impact: $2,135.00 
Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 
Community Manager’s Approval:  
 
 
 





















  Barefoot Bay Recreation District   Part 2‐ 
Policy Manual 

GENERAL FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 

` 

9

documented to show the rationale for rejection (i.e. does not meet specifications, delivery and past 
performance problems). 

Tie	Bids	
Award of all tie quotes/bids shall be made by the District in accordance with Sec. 287.087, F.S., which 
allows a firm certified as a Drug-Free Workplace to have preference. In the event that both or neither firm 
is a Drug-Free Workplace, tie quote/bids may be awarded by lot. 

Waiver	of	Irregularities	
The Board of Trustees shall have the authority to waive irregularities in any proposal, and/or bid.  

Signatures	on	Contracts		
The Community Manager must execute all contracts for on-going and/or routine purchases of goods and 
services.   
 
The Board of Trustees must approve and the Chair of the Board must execute contracts that exceed one 
year (1) in duration, including renewal term or that exceed $7,500 in value.  

Change	Orders	or	Amendments	
Change order means changes, due to unanticipated conditions or developments, made to a contract, 
which do not substantially alter the character of the work contracted for and which do not vary so 
substantially from the original specifications as to constitute a new undertaking. Such changes must be 
reasonably and conscientiously viewed as being in fulfillment of the original scope of the contract. 
Further, such changes when viewed against the background of the work described in the contract and 
the language used in the specifications, must clearly be directed either to the achievement of a more 
satisfactory result of the elimination of work not necessary to the satisfactory completion of the contract. 
 
The Community Manager is hereby authorized to approve and initiate work on the following types of 
change orders determined in his or her judgment to be in the best interest of the public and which do not 
materially alter the scope of the work contemplated by the initial contract. 
 

1. All change orders resulting in a cumulative net decrease to the initial cost of the contract to 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District. 

2. All change orders increasing the initial contract cost by under 10%, provided sufficient 
documentation is provided. 

3. All change orders or amendments involving procedural or other matters that will not result in any 
change to the contract's cost. 

 
The Board of Trustees must formally approve all other change orders before work may be authorized to 
begin. 

Purchase	of	Computer,	Related	Equipment	and	Supplies	
Purchase of any IT related product or service will be coordinated through the IT services contract 
manager for vendor analysis and approval. 34 

Receiving	and	Approving	Goods	and	Services	
It is the responsibility of each department to inspect all goods or services to determine their conformance 
with the specifications set forth in the purchase agreement. 
If goods or services are not acceptable, the department manager take appropriate action and if 
necessary, notify the Community Manager. 



Date Project Payment

6/4/2016 CCTV 1st Installment 6,310.00    

6/15/2016 CCTV 2nd Installment 6,310.00    

8/2/2016  Deposit for Fiber Run Bldg A‐Bldg F & Lounge ‐Playground 3,191.25    

8/2/2016 Balance for Fiber 3,191.25    

9/23/2016 Conduit for Fiber/Electrical  379.10        

11/17/2016 Additional Fiber Run at Playground for 3rd Camera 2,711.23    

11/17/2016 Deposit for Electrical Run Lounge to Playground 735.00        

11/30/2016 Balance Electrical Run Lounge to Playground 1,627.25    

Sub‐Total 24,455.08  

Pending CCTV Final Payment  6,310.00    

Projected Total 30,765.08  

FY16 CCTV Project Expenditure History



Meeting Date  
Dec. 09, 2016 
   
   

Agenda 
Section 9  
Item No    J

 
Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Building A Sound System Upgrade 
 
Dept/Office: R&M/Capital 
 
Requested Action: Direction to Staff 
 
Summary Explanation and Background: 
 
After the November 2016 BFBHOA meeting, Trustee Cavaliere requested staff to research the 
problems with the sound system in Building A and place the issue on the 09Dec16 BOT agenda.   
 
Staff is currently working with vendors to solicit quotes which are anticipated to be under $7,500 
in costs.  Although the Community Manager has the authority to sign the lowest responsible 
quote, the lack of a specific budget for the project necessitates BOT authorization to use either 
contingency or another project’s available budget. Staff will provide the BOT copies of quotes as 
they are received prior to the meeting. 
 
Staff requests direction from the BOT regarding this matter. 
 
Exhibits Attached: N/A 
Contact: Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager; John W. Coffey, Community Manager;  
Fiscal Impact: TBD 
Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: No 
Community Manager’s Approval:  
 
 
 
 



Meeting Date  
Dec. 09, 2016 
   
   

Agenda 
Section 9  
Item No    K

 
Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  19th Hole Carpet Replacement 
 
Dept/Office: R&M/Capital 
 
Requested Action: Direction to Staff 
 
Summary Explanation and Background: 
 
On 27Sep16, the BOT authorized staff to proceed with flooring replacement in the 19th Hole 
which was completed last month.   Trustee Klosky asked that staff solicit quotes for the 
carpet replacement and place the issue on this agenda for consideration by the BOT. 
 
Staff solicited the following quotes for tile carpet: 
 $3,408.60 Discount Carpet & Tile, Inc. 
 $3,669.00 Empire Today (vendor who installed vinyl flooring) 
 
For comparative purposes, staff requested a quote from Empire Today for regular carpet 
($2,043), although staff believes the tile carpet is a better value due to longer useful economic 
life as stained or torn sections can easily be replaced versus replacing the entire carpet as has 
te previous practice of BBRD. 
 
Currently, there is $69,548 in available balance in the R&M/Capital Contingency line item 
budget. 
 
Staff requests direction from the BOT regarding this matter. 
 
 
Exhibits Attached:  Quotes from Discount Carpet & Tile and Empire Today 
Contact: Kimi Cheng, Finance Manager; or John W. Coffey, Community Manager 
Fiscal Impact: No to exceed $3,669. 
Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: No 
Community Manager’s Approval:  
 
 
 
 
 







Meeting Date  
Dec. 09, 2016 
   
   

Agenda 
Section 9  
Item No          L

 
Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Appointment to the Facilities Planning Advisory Committee  
 
Dept/Office: Administration: District Clerk’s Office 
 
Requested Action: Appointment to the Facilities Planning Advisory Committee 
Summary Explanation and Background: 
 
The Facilities Planning Advisory Committee currently has a vacant unexpired 3-year voting 
member position.  Staff has advertised a vacancy and will forward any resumes received to the 
BOT when they are submitted.   
 
Staff recommends the BOT appoint one of the current alternates (William English and Brian 
Belanger) to the unexpired 3-year term of voting member and then appoint a homeowner to the 
fill the 3-year term of Alternate to the Facilities Planning Advisory Committee.  If an insufficient 
number of resumes are received prior to the meeting, the BOT can continue the agenda item to 
the next meeting. 
 
Exhibits Attached:  Roster of committees and members 
Contact: Dawn Myers, District Clerk; and John W. Coffey, Community Manager 
Fiscal Impact: N/A  
Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 
Community Manager’s Approval:  
 
 
 
 





Meeting Date  
Dec. 09, 2016 
   
   

Agenda 
Section 9  
Item No          M

 
Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Appointment to the Finance Advisory Committee  
 
Dept/Office: Administration: District Clerk’s Office 
 
Requested Action: Appointment to the Finance Advisory Committee 
Summary Explanation and Background: 
 
The Finance Advisory Committee currently has two vacant Alternate positions.  Staff has 
advertised said vacancies and will forward any resumes received to the BOT when they are 
submitted.   
 
Staff recommends the BOT appoint homeowners to fill the 3-year terms of Alternate to the 
Finance Advisory Committee.  If an insufficient number of resumes are received prior to the 
meeting, the BOT can continue the agenda item to the next meeting. 
 
Exhibits Attached:  Roster of committees and members 
Contact: Dawn Myers, District Clerk; and John W. Coffey, Community Manager 
Fiscal Impact: N/A  
Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 
Community Manager’s Approval:  
 
 
 
 





Meeting Date  
Dec. 09, 2016 
   
   

Agenda 
Section 9  
Item No          N

 
Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Appointment to the Security Advisory Committee  
 
Dept/Office: Administration: District Clerk’s Office 
 
Requested Action: Appointment to the Security Advisory Committee 
Summary Explanation and Background: 
 
The Security Advisory Committee currently has a vacant Alternate position.  Staff has advertised 
said vacancy and will forward any resumes received to the BOT when they are submitted.   
 
Staff recommends the BOT appoint a homeowner to fill the 3-year term of Alternate to the 
Security Advisory Committee.  If an insufficient number of resumes are received prior to the 
meeting, the BOT can continue the agenda item to the next meeting. 
 
Exhibits Attached:  Roster of committees and members 
Contact: Dawn Myers, District Clerk; and John W. Coffey, Community Manager 
Fiscal Impact: N/A  
Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 
Community Manager’s Approval:  
 
 
 
 





Meeting Date  
Dec. 09, 2016 
   
   

Agenda 
Section 9  
Item No          O

 
Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Appointment to the Violations Committee  
 
Dept/Office: Administration: District Clerk’s Office 
 
Requested Action: Appointment to the Violations Committee 
Summary Explanation and Background: 
 
The Violations Committee currently has a vacant Alternate position.  Staff has advertised said 
vacancy and will forward any resumes received to the BOT when they are submitted.   
 
Staff recommends the BOT appoint a homeowner to fill the 3-year term of Alternate to the 
Violations Committee.  If an insufficient number of resumes are received prior to the meeting, the 
BOT can continue the agenda item to the next meeting. 
 
Exhibits Attached:  Roster of committees and members 
Contact: Dawn Myers, District Clerk; and John W. Coffey, Community Manager 
Fiscal Impact: N/A  
Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 
Community Manager’s Approval:  
 
 
 
 





Meeting Date  

December 9, 2016  

   

   

Agenda  

Section 9 

Item No    P

 

Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Guinther v. Barefoot Bay Recreation District 

  Case No.: 05-2016-CA-025044-XXXX-XX  

  

Dept/Office:   Legal/Attorney Repperger 

 

Requested Action:    
 

  Request for Attorney-Client Session pursuant to Sec. 286.011(8), Florida Statutes. 

  

Summary Explanation and Background: 

 

On November 28, 2016, Judge George Maxwell III executed an Order denying BBRD’s 

Motion for Summary Judgment in the above referenced case (attached). 

 

There are numerous strategic options available to BBRD to address the Order.  Attorney 

Repperger desires the Board’s advice concerning the ligation. 

 

If approved, the Attorney-Client Session will be held on December 19, 2016 beginning at 

2:30 p.m.  The location of the Attorney-Client Session will be separately noticed and 

announced at the meeting. 

  

Exhibits Attached:  Order as referenced. 

Contact :   Clifford R. Repperger, Jr. GrayRobinson, P.A 

Fiscal Impact: Hourly cost of legal fees and court reporter costs. 

Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney :      N/A 

Community Manager’s Approval  :     



Filing # 49394580 E-Filed 11/29/2016 03:17:09 PM











 
Manager’s Report 

 
  

  

  

  

 



  

Barefoot Bay Recreation District 
625 Barefoot Boulevard, Building “F” 

Barefoot Bay, FL 32976-9233 
 

Phone 772-664-3141 
Fax 772-664-1928 

 
 
Memo To:  Board of Trustees 
 
From: John W. Coffey, Community Manager 
 
Date:  December 09, 2016  
 
Subject: Manager’s Report  
 
 
 
Finance 
1. FY16 Audit Update – Independent auditors from MSL will be on-site doing 

fieldwork on 13-16Dec16. 
 
Resident Relations 
2. Community Watch Program Update – The program started last month and is 

now in operations. Hours of operations will vary according to day of week and 
season to avoid establishing a pattern of patrol. The additional eyes on BBRD has 
been well received by BCSO deputies and concerned citizens.  

 
Food & Beverage 
3. New Year Eve Events:  

A. In response to requests by residents, this year the New Year’s Eve party in the 
Lounge will be an open event without tickets. There will be a pot luck buffet 
with music by Bob Coleman and the Coolers. Weather permitting; the Coolers 
will set up Lakeside of the Lounge. Seats in the Lounge will not be reserved.  

B. Tickets for the 19th Hole New Year’s Eve party go on sale Saturday, 10Dec16 
at 10am. A 3 course small plate meal will be served. Steve Cole is playing 
7:30pm until midnight.  

4. Motown Show – There will be another Motown Show on Saturday, 28Jan17 in 
Building A from 7-10pm. Tickets will go on sale Monday, 26Dec16 at the Lounge, 
the 19th Hole and Resident Relations for $10.  

5. Tables, Chairs, Oh My – New tables and chairs have been ordered for the 19th 
Hole and are expected to be delivered Monday, 12Dec16. 

 
Golf-Pro Shop 
6. Tournaments – Golf for Tots and Sadie Hawkins Tournaments were a great 

success. 



  

7. Bag Drop Relocation – The Bag Drop and signs were moved to the former site of 
the 10 minute parking area for golf visitor convenience. The 10 minute parking 
area will not be relocated. 

8. Overseed Protection Watering Update – ABM has added extra watering cycles 
to help to cool off over-seed during the unseasonably warm weather. 
Unfortunately, this will result in softer turf conditions until the irrigation settings 
are equalized. 

9. Hurricane Damages Repair Update – Parking lot and driving range netting is 
back up and it looks great. 

10. Fleet Cart Transition Update – Working with Attorney Repperger regarding 
new fleet golf cart lease and swap out of carts.  

11. Golf Course Member Only Sale – Will be held on Wednesday 14Dec16 from 5-
8pm. 

12. Holiday Closures: 
A. Golf Course Pro Shop closes at 2pm on Christmas Eve and will re-open at 

6:30am on Monday 26Dec16.  
B. Golf Course and Pro Shop will close at 2pm on New Year ’s Eve and re-open 

at 6:30am on Monday, 02Jan17. 
 
Property Services 
13. R&M/Capital Projects Updates: 

A. Continued to solicit quotes for various projects. 
B. Constructed and installed new drain boxes for the shuffle board courts. 
C. Shuffle board vendor informed staff of new anticipated start date of late 

January. 
14. Boat Update:  

A. Installed the boat in the front island at Veterans Way. 
B. Replaced outdated lighting in the front of Veterans Way for the boat and 

sign.  
15. Routine/Special Projects Updates: 

A. Trimmed trees throughout the Building A lake area. 
B. Installed Christmas decorations with the Deck the Halls club. 
C. Restriped /marked pathways and cart parking around the 19th Hole and Pro 

Shop area. 
D. Placed stone around the new poles for the screens at the golf course. 
E. ABM has added extra watering cycles to the Lawn Bowling Court help to cool 

off over-seed during the unseasonably warm weather. Unfortunately, this will 
result in softer turf conditions until the irrigation settings are equalized. 

 
General Information 
16. Hurricane Repairs to Pier and Beach Walkover Update  – The vendor who 

previously provided staff with e-mail quotes refuses to provide a detailed quote 
for each project. Staff continues to solicit other quotes but multiple vendors have 



  

declined to come down to BBRD citing enough work on the beaches to las t 
several months. 

17. Proposed FY18-22 5yrFM&CIP Update – The document will be hand delivered 
to trustees and applicable advisory committee members the evening of Friday, 
06Jan17. The BOT workshop to review the model and plan is currently 
scheduled for Tuesday, 31Jan17 in Bldg. D/E at 2pm. 

18. Employee Christmas Party – The annual BBRD employee Christmas Party will 
be held from 4-7pm in the Lounge on Thursday 22Dec16. To facilitate 
attendance and to limit the closure of the Lounge to residents, all BBRD offices 
will close at 4pm on 22Dec16. 

19. Holiday Closures – Administrative offices will be closed on Friday 23Dec16 and 
Monday 26Dec16 for Christmas Eve and Christmas Holidays plus Monday 
02Jan17 for New Year’s Day. 

20. Season’s Greetings – The Community Manager is happy to report that all BBRD 
residents are on Santa’s “Good Boy and Girl list” again this year.  Happy 
Hanukkah, Merry Christmas and Happy New Year to all BBRD residents.  

 



 
Attorney’s Report 

 
  

  

  

 



 
Trustees Liaison Reports 

 
  

  

  

  

 



 
Incidental Remarks from 

Trustees 
 

  

  

  

  

 



 
Audience Participation 

 
  

  

  

 



 
Adjournment 

 
  

  

  

  

 


	Barefoot Bay Recreation District Regular Meeting Friday, December 9, 2016
	Agenda Friday, December 9, 2016
	01 Thought of the Day
	02 Pledge of Allegiance
	03 Roll Call
	04 Presentations
	Luann Henderson Retirement
	Barefoot Bay Song
	FPL Presentation

	05 Approval of Minutes
	Novemeber 10, 2016

	06 Treasurer's Report
	Friday, December 9, 2016

	07 Audience Participation (Agenda Items Only)
	08 Unfinished Business
	8A Review of Advisory Committees 
	Excerpt from BOT Rules

	8B Safety Deposit Box Relocation

	09 New Business
	9A Case # 16-003542 944 PECAN CIRCLE
	9B Lounge Canopies Replacement Award of Contract
	Quotes from ABC Awning & Canvas Comp., Inc.

	9C BFBHOA Fountain Donation Request
	Information provided by Mr. Kahl, Excerpt of Policy Manual

	9D Golf Advisory Committee Recommendation: Membership Rates
	25Oct16 BOT Minutes and Golf Membership Rate Comparison

	9E Finance Advisory Committee (FAC) Recommendation: New Banking
	03Nov16 FAC minutes

	9F Recreation Advisory Committee Recommendation: Soccer Field
	Draft RAC 17Nov16 meeting minutes

	9G Replacement Golf Cart Award of Contract
	State bid quote and vendor information

	9H Resident Relations Postage Machine Lease Renewal
	Lease Renewal Form and Email Correspondence

	9I Confirmation of 2016 CCTV Project Change Order
	24May16 BOT Agenda memo (award of original contract) and minutes,10Jun16 BOT agenda memo (ATP Change order) and minutes, invoice from HunterCommunications for change order, Excerpt from Policy Manual, Summary of projectexpenditures and projected total expenditures

	9J Building A Sound System Upgrade
	9K 19th Hole Carpet Replacement
	Quotes from Discount Carpet & Tile and Empire Today

	9L Appointment to the Facilities Planning Advisory Committee
	Roster of committees and members

	9M Appointment to the Finance Advisory Committee
	Roster of committees and members

	9N Appointment to the Security Advisory Committee
	Roster of committees and members

	9O Appointment to the Violations Committee
	Roster of committees and members

	9P Guinther v. Barefoot Bay Recreation District
	Attachment


	10 Community Manager's Report
	December 09, 2016

	11 Attorney's Report
	12 Trustee Liaison Report
	13 Trustee Incidental Remarks 
	14 Audience Participation
	15 Adjournment

		2016-12-03T00:12:03-0500
	John W. Coffey


		2016-12-03T00:13:50-0500
	John W. Coffey


		2016-12-03T00:14:15-0500
	John W. Coffey


		2016-12-03T00:14:40-0500
	John W. Coffey


		2016-12-03T00:15:07-0500
	John W. Coffey


		2016-12-03T00:15:41-0500
	John W. Coffey


		2016-12-03T00:16:16-0500
	John W. Coffey


		2016-12-03T00:17:08-0500
	John W. Coffey


		2016-12-03T00:17:57-0500
	John W. Coffey


		2016-12-03T00:18:33-0500
	John W. Coffey


		2016-12-03T00:19:23-0500
	John W. Coffey


		2016-12-03T00:20:10-0500
	John W. Coffey


		2016-12-03T00:21:16-0500
	John W. Coffey


		2016-12-03T00:22:00-0500
	John W. Coffey


		2016-12-03T00:22:51-0500
	John W. Coffey


		2016-12-03T00:23:40-0500
	John W. Coffey


		2016-12-03T00:24:31-0500
	John W. Coffey


		2016-12-03T00:25:29-0500
	John W. Coffey


		2016-12-03T00:26:26-0500
	John W. Coffey




